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281. Unguncai, ex in chf
(Estrin)

---Upon resuminc at 9:992 a.m., May 17th,- 1979

THE CQURT: Before vou
start, Mr. Istrin, I shoulé sav that we had
a meeting and we decicded to sit from sever
to nine this evening in addition to the hours
we have been keepinc recularly durinc the week.
Ve will also sit from
seven to nine tomorrow evenino if that is

necessarv.

-—==BUGH UNGUIGAI, recalled

0. In continuing, r.
Uncuncai, I perhaps omitted to ask vou to tell
us about one of vour other roles in this communityv.
I understand that vou are a Justice of the
Peace?

A, Yes, I ar also a Justice
of the Peace in the corutunitv of 2aker Lake but
I cannot recall the aprointrent on that. Yes,
I am also involved with that.

Q'¢ Eow lonc have vou lreen
a Justice of the Peace?

2. Going on now for four
- five years.

C. 2m I correct in mvy
understandinag vou are the only Justice of the
Peace for this settlerent at the present time?

A. At the present tirme now
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282. Ungungai, ex in chf
(ESHETR,)
I am the only Justice of the Peace. There was one
other person -- the school principal -- bhut

having to leave the community, he had to resicgn
that position.

Q. You told us yesterday
about back in the 1960s, and I think it was in
1965, you said, or 1964, that vou told us about
a large herd of caribou that you saw near the
mouth of the Kazan River. Héve I cot that
correctly?

A. Yes, as I mentioned
vesterday this was during 1963 and 1964 when
there was a lot of caribou herds in that area
coming in travellinc along the south side of the
lake shore into towards the mouth of the Kazan
River and going up along the river and they
would cross just below the Kazan Falls. They
would cross in those areas. There was a lot
of caribou in those years during 1963 and 19€¢4
during the time we had a fish camp there.

Again in 1967, that was the last caribou herd

I saw in the Kazan area-- this was durinc the

yvear of 1967 --part of the caribou herd called
the Kaminuriak Eerd.

Q. Yesterday you mentioned
that in 1978 a report was made to you, and you
went out to investigate that with Mr. Darbv,

about a herd seen in the area of the Kazan Falls?




r BB N 283. Ungungai, ex in chf
E (Estrin)
~ R
t i A. That's correct. This was
2 i in 1978. A man just recently hunting from the
N
| " Kazan area informed me there was a carikou herd
?‘ . E in that area. I reported that to Pill Darty,
I g doing the monitoring on the ¥aminuriak Herd as
f“ ; well as the Beverly caribou herd, and we went
. : out to see the herd that was reported to me.
" g We went out to see this herd. This was in the
ff‘ z summner of 1978. -
‘ E Q. And I think you told us
*&1 R vesterday that when you cot there that there were
E no animals to be seen, is that right?
o
] s J A. Yes, that 1is correct.
p § This was because of the fact this person I
g was out hunting with -- during that time of the
¥ % vear there was still ice on the lake and of
- h
B C course one, to travel, must travel up river with
3 % S the canoe. It does take time to travel up and
e % back to the community. By the time we cot the
g 0 report that there was caribou in that area --
® E we went out the next day with a helicopter
- X taking along John Nava%a, the then President
A 25 g of the Hunters and Trappers Association. By
o ; the time we cot to where we were there was nothing
2 z there then. They moved on to another area.
opm s 0. Did you get out of the
| i helicopter in that area and look around?
i - é A. VYes, we did get out of the
o0
3
-
™~
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Ungungai, ex in chf
(Estrin)

[\)
(o]

helicopter to look around to see where the caribou
had been, locoking at the track recently made in
the area where this caribou herd was.

Q. Did you form any
conclusions as to whether or not this herd
that had been reported was in this area recently
in 19782

MR. GRAEZAM: Well, My Lord

THE COURT: This is
precisely the evidence that you cot yesterday,
Mr. Estrin. I can appreciate your wanting to
refresh the witness's mind if you want to
continue from a line of cuestioning you did
vesterday, but you have taken about twenty
minutes to do that now. Is there something
new?

MR. GRAEHAM: I think a
conclusion of the witness is appropriate if
the appropriate ground work is laid, but I
would not say that we have done that yet.

THE COURT: He said
yesterday that he was on the ground and there
-were traces of caribgu having been there.

MR. ESTRIN: Well, My Loxrd,
I have just one more aépect that I wanted to
continue with.

THE COURT: I just hope

you realize it is consuming time that may be
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(Estrin)

denied another witness as a result of asking
this wiﬁness to repeat himself at length.

MR, ESTRI¥: I do not
intend to take it any further except I wish
to ccntinue it for one more small point.

BY MR. ESTRIN:

Q. Mr. Ungungai, did you
report your conclusion that you told us about
yvesterday at that time? Did you report it
to Mr. Darby -- as to the caribou being there
recently?

A. Yes, I did make a
report to Bill Darby saying that in fact there
was a caribou herd in that area just recently.
It was very evident. You could see the carihou
tracks along the lake shore on the sand. One
would know that there was caribou in that area
very recently.

As I mentioned bhefore,
John Navala and myself have reported this to
Bill Darby saying that there was caribou here
in that area just recentiy. Unfortunately,
he thought that perhaps those tracks were made
a year ago or sone time ago. Not recently.

Q. The herd that came
to the Kazan in 1978, was it the first herd
that has been there that you are aware of

since 19672

. Uncungai, ex in

chiE
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Unaungai, ex in chf
(Fstrin)

A. Mo, there was a very small
group of caribou that came through there during
the month of Aucust in 1976.

0. Mr. Unguncai, I want
to ask you about whether, in vour experience,
there have been changes in the micration routes
or the location of wintering caribou herds in
this area over the last ten years?

MPR. CHA&BERS: If I may
at this point raise an objection, the witness
has not been asked how he would know whether
there has been a change in migration routes
or a change in calving grounds. It seems to
me he is being asked a guestion without the
groundwork having been laid.

THE COURT: As I recall
the evidence, he travels north, east, south and
west and usually in the course of his work
as a game officer and I would thinlt that he
would be qualified, from that ~point of view,
if he has noticed things in his travels to
tell us about themn. .

MR. CHAMBERS: 1If this
is the basis of what he is about to say,
then I am content, My Lord.

THE COURT: Certainly
Mr. Estrin predicated his question on his

personal observations. Am I not correct, Mr.
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287. Ungungai, ex in
(Estrin)
Estrin?
MR. ESTRIN: VYes, exactly,
My Lord.

THE WITNESS: As I mentioned
yesterday, in the earlier years, when I was a
young man, there was a lot of caribou close
by the area here in Baker Lake. Once again,
as I mentioned yesterday, I was able to get
caribou right close to the MOT here, right
up where the graveyard is now and again just
down where the garbage dump is. That shows there
was caribou very close by to the settlement
in those years.

From my personal experience,
there has been a great change from the caribou
routes that have been changed and naturally so
from even 1963 and 64 when a lot of the caribou
herd were coming in and travelling along the
south lake shore just on the other side of
Baker Lake. Even that has changed now. These
caribou do not travel the same direction ~--
the same area they usec, to travel. They are
now either travelling farther inland or have
moved away from these areas they used to
travel.

Certainly I believe the
cause of all that is the fact that there has

been a lot of mining exploration and a lot of




S—-Hpwom<

M- 0 LmO—=<ImMN QZ—~—m80vmA

O ZOunwn4Z» KO«

B - IR 7,

O—=m»—H20 »E»-HH0O

|

WO NO 1 —NWwn

228. Ungungai, ex in chf
(Estrin)

aircraft flying -- helicopters flying -- and
I personally believe it is the disturbance
being cdone by these enormous aircraft flyinag
in that area.

THE COURT: I think,
Mr. Graham, this is a pretty cood time for
vou to get your objection on the record.

MR. GRAEAM: I think
that while it is perfectly a@propriate for
these witnesses to be asked conclusions, to
some extent, from what they have seen, since
the commencement of the trial theyv have
actually been asked guestions leading them
to give evidence or asked to give ewidence at to
the results in their opinion as to what has
resulted from certain factors they have observed.
While I think it may be appropriate in the
particular circumstances in which we are hearing
this evidence, I would like to draw vour
Lordship's attention to the fact that in our
view, of course, it is the court's function
and it will stay the court's function instead

<
of the witness's.

THE COURT: I thin}, in
fairness, that information was volunteered
rather than evoked hy his questions.

MR. GRAHAM: I just
wanted to state that objection instead of our

having to repeat that objection everyv time.
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Uncuncai, ex in
(Estrin)

TEE COURT: Quite so.

BY MR. ESTRIN:

0. Are you akle to,
with reference to this map, point out where
the herd used to come in the late sixties and
where they may be goinc now -- the ones you
know about?

A. In the early 1960s,

I am unable to give you any information as to
which direction they would take when they are
travelling inland, once acain. But I can
recall that we used to -- I was in charce of a
fish camp at the mouth of the Kazan River and I
know, from experience, that these animals,

the caribou, used to travel alonc the shore of
the lake =-- the south side of the lake along
the lake shore. They came into these fish
camps on the othe; side of the mouth of the
Kazan River and thev travelled up alonc the
river again, and again I can't tell you which
direction they went throuch because there was
no reason for us to trazel any farther up the
river to get caribou because they were travelling
on the lake shore at that time.

I know from experience
they used to travel alonc the lake shore and
they travelled up the river acain.

Durinc the vear 1967, I

can recall seeinc a carikou herd crossinc the

chf
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290 . Unqungai, ex in chf
(Estrin)

lazan River on a crossing in this particular |

area and going across the river through these

islands. I can rememkber we got some caribou
on the island there. This was during the summer
of 1967.

Q. Are you akle to tell
us, from your personal experience, where vou gc
or where you look for finding the herd this
year or last year around Baker Lake?

A, VYes, this is the type of
thing we do on a yearly basis. Every year we
travel looking for caribou herds and naturally
vou have to travel up the river now to see if
there is any caribou. Even during the early
summer, since there is still some ice on the
lake, you travel along the lake shore. VYou
occasionally travel over the ice to get up to
the Kazan River to look for caribou herds
every year.

In that general area, as
I mentioned earlier -- this is what happened
last year there -- thegg was a report that

this caribou herd I mentioned earlier was seen

in that Kazan River area -- last year during
about the same time. This was durina the month
of June.

Q0. And are there any caribou

routes that you are aware of that the carikou have
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(Estrin)
on the north side of Baker Lake?

A, I do not have any
knowledge as to the caribou herds uvp on the
north side of Baker Lake. &as I mentioned,
there used to be caribou close by, but I have
no knowledge as to where they travelled from
or which direction they were travellinag. Eut
I would prefer to leave that information with
an older person who is bettef experienced in
that field.

0. Is the farther
distances that you and other peorle c¢o now
to find the caribou a difficult exnerience ==
more difficult than huntinc in the nast --
or is it one that is just accevntec?

THE IMNTERPRETER: May I
just say something. For some reason I am not
in a position to concentrate on everything
this morning. I am afraid I am not going to

be a very good interpreter this morning. I

Unguncai, ex in chf

have noticed already that there are some thinos

I forgot to mention either in English or Inuk

<

I would rather not carry on any further, if
that is the condition I am goinag to be in.
-—-—=CONTINUINMG WITH IMTERPRETER JOI'M PATTERK,

MR. HEINTZM2N: I wonder

tutuk.

SWQOPRN:

i

the witness would state his answers in short parts

so thev can be interpreted in little croups.

I
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202. Unouncai, ex in chf

(Estrin)

think it might be easier on the interpreter.

THE COURT: The interpreter
may ask him to do that, if that is what vou want
Mr. Patterk. If you would rather have the witness
break his answers into short pieces so you can
give them, you tell him to do that.

MR. GOLDEN: Perhaps the
normal style of interpretation would be to have
the interpreter use the stylé he would wish rather
than have the witness shorten his answers.

I think perhaps my friend's
observation was well intended but --

BY MR. ESTRIN:

Q. What I was asking you
and you told us is that you and other people from
Baker Lake are going farther than before, in
earlier years, to find the caribou. Is this
a difficult experience for yourself and other
people?

A. They have changeéd from
the earlier years. %We have gone farther to hunt
caribou. Each summer weéhave to go up to Thelon
River and around the Half-Way Hills area and,
in fact, we have to go up to Aberdeen Lake to
hunt caribou and also down to Cross Bay, which
is right near the sea. 1In fact, last year I
had to go as far as Kazan Falls area around Thirty

Mile Lake to hunt caribou.
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(Bstrin)

THE COGRT: I do not think
you got an answer to your question vyet.

Could you explain to the
witness that althouch he has to go farther,
the guestion is, is it easier or harder to go
farther?

THE WITNESS: The people
in Baker Lake know that it is harder to go
farther because we have to éepend on the agas
and snowmobile parts so, naturally it is
harder to go farther.

BY MR. ESTRIM:

0. Mr. Patterk, does
the game office in which you work keep records
of the caribou killed in the Baker Lake area?

A. (Interpreter) That's
me !

0. I'm sorry. Mr. Ungunagai.

A. The game office keers
a record of how many caribou are killed in this
area. Every three months there are vouna
peoole going to each hoyse and inguiring how
many carikou are killed -- whether it comes
from the Kaminuriak Herd or whether from the
Beverly Herd, whether a male or female caribou,
and so every three months these are recorded
by visiting each house.

Q. Are the figures kept =--

Unguncai, ex in chf
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294. Ungungai, ex 1n

(Estrin)
as I understand, they are kept on a hasis from
July 1lst on one year to June 30th in the next
vear, is that correct?

A. Yes, that is correct.

0. And can vou tell us what
the number of caribou was that were killed hy
Baker Lake residents in the period July lst,
1977 to June 30th, 19787

A. Apbroximately sixteen
hundred were killed.

0. Can you give us the
figure for the previous year, that is from Julv
lst, 1976 to June 30th, 19772

A. I'm not guite sure,
but I think it is around the neichbourhood of
sixteen hundred or a little mcre than sixteen

hundred for that year.

Q. Do you know whether it

was less in this past year than in the previous

vear?
A. Yo, I can't answer that.
0. I just have cne more
<
guestion. It has been said that if there are

less caribou in the Baker Lake area than there
used to be, that this is because the Inuvit are
hunting too many caribou. Do vou have any
reaction to that, from your personal experience

on the land and being Assistant Fish and Wildlife
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2955 Uncuncai, ex in chf
(Estrin)
Officer?
A. I can answer you from

personal experience that the animals have chanced

and decreased in numbers. 2nd from our history,

people will tell you that there has keen some
chances and it does not zffect -- well, I mean
I have keen Game Officer and that didn't --

THE COURT: Would you like
the reporter to read the guestion back to you?
I am not sure where you are lost here?

MR. GOLDEN:

I am not sure

how to cure the problem. I am sure there is one.
THE COURT:
of his answer or lost part of the aguestion or
has he lost part of the question?
THE INTERPRETER:
the Game Officer area.
THE

COURT: You mean the

territory that he covers as a Game Officer?

THE INTERPRETER: Well,

something to do with the Game Officer. He
said he was also a Game_ Cfficer but didn't make

any chances.

THE COURT: I wonder, Mr.

Unguncai, we know you do. speak Enaglish fairly
well. Would vou like to try to answer that
in English?

TEE WITNESS:

Yes, I could

Have you lost part

I got lost in
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206 s Unguncai, ex in chf
(Estrin)

try, but it wouldn't be very aood.

THE COURT: It woula be
better than what we got now.

TEE WITNESS: What I am
trying to say 1s that in the past, ever since
I rerember, I have been dealing with hunting
and trapping and so on, so I am a Game Officer.
I work with game management. That really dicn't
give me any experience to learn more about hunting
and trapping because it was my life right from
the start.

Now I am confused too.
Knowledge being a Game Officer didn't educate
me in any traditional hunting.

MR. ESTRIN: I think we
have got so far a sort of reaction to the first
part of my cuestion. The first part of the
question was just an introduction to it.

If I may try the cguestion
again, perhaps we may conclude this.

BY MR. ESTRIW:

0. My question really

“
was what is your reaction to what has been said
by other people that if the caribou are not here
or around Baker Lake it is because the Inuit

are over-hunting and the Inuit's fault that has
caused this?

A. Contrary to that statement,

I don't think we Inuit are over-hunting carikou
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200 & Uncungai, ex in
(Estrin)

because we don't have to feed the doags like today
that we used to, so I don't know how the people
came to that position.

MR. ESTRIN: Thank vou,

Mr. Ungungai. Those are all my questions.

——-CROSS~-EXAMINATION BY MPR. COSMAN

0. Mr.'Ungungai, you are
now the Assistant Wildlife Officer for Baker
Lake, is that correct?

A. Yes, correcit.

0. For sewven years, from
1964 to 1971, you were a patrolman for Canadian
Wildlife?

A. I was employed by the
game management and half of the time was spent
at the office and the other haif in the field.

Q. And what were vour
responsibilities when you were in the field?

A. I already mentioned that

vyesterday.

-

0. I don't recall your
answer yesterday as to what your resronsibilities
were while you were in the field. Can you tell
us what they were?

A. I was the cuide for

wildlife officers when they were first introduced

chf
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(Cosman)

to this area, just to get them acauainted with
the job'in the area.

0. Was it part of vour
30ob to ensure that hunters complied with the
regulations that protected wildlife?

A. At that time I was
the interpreter for the wildlife officers when
they had held their meetings and when thev were
discussing the regulations to the peonle.

0. W¥as it the job of the
wildlife officer to enforce and monitor those
regulations, do vou know?

A. The wildlife officer's
duty was to make sure that these regulaticns
were enforced, but I didn't have anything to do
with it.

0. You explainedwhat those
regulations were to the hunters, did vou?

A. During the Eunters and
Trapoers Association meetinacs some of these
regulations were explained to the people.

Q., And was one of those
regulations that all hunters need a hunting
licence to hunt caribou and other animals?

A. This has been the case
ever since then.

Q. I'm Soxxy?

A. That they neeced the

Ungungai, cr, ex.
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299. Unguncal, cr.ex,

(Cosran)

licence.

Q. Is it the reocuirement
of the licence that at the end of each vear the
hunter reports the number of carihou that he
kills?

A. That is written irn the
licence, but it was not actually enforced.

0. Did some hunters do
it, and other hunters diad nof?

A. Yes, just some renort
the kill and sore just ignore it. But, like
I have said before, there are younag peorle visiting
each house and doing the surveys of how manv
were killed.

Q. Was it considered a
problem in the came manacerment office to determine
the number of caribou that were killed?

A. Yes, it was a pnroblem.

Q. Was one other
regulation that you dealt with a regulation
having to do with a restriction on the hunting
of musk ox? .

A. Yes, we are aware of
the regulations on the restrictions.

Q. ©Until last year, I
understand, there was a prohibition acainst
hunting musk ox, is thatcorrect?

A. Yes, that is correct.
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300. Uncungai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)
Q. 1Is it correct that as

of last fall the people of Baker Lake now kill
six musk oxen for the whole community?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q0. Are there restrictions
on the killing of other animals? Do vou know
of any other such restrictions?

A. I am not aware about

the restrictions. But one of them is -- how can

I not know all these things. I am a game officer.

I have to know the restrictions.

Q. Is there a restriction

on the hunting of owls and hawks?

A Yesi,
Q. Is there a restriction
on the hunting of bears?
A. Yes.
Q0. Is there a restriction on

the kind of gun a hunter mav use?

A. Yes, there is also
a restriction on that.

Q.‘ Can dogs be used for
hunting -~ not to pull a sled, but are dogs
permitted to be used for hunting?

A. Since we don't have
any sleds now, we don't really depend on the

dogs.

Q. Do you know if it is
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30:1.< Ungungai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

pernitted to use dogs to assist in huntipg?

A. Yes, I know.

Q0. You mentioned the
name of two caribou herds. You mentioned the
Kaminuriak EHerd and the Beverly Herd. Can
vou tell me where the Beverly Herd is located?

A. ©Cn the map?

Q. Yes, please.

A. At fhat time the herd
would be migrating over this area, but it has
been rerouted and they are migrating around
this area.

MR. ESTRIN: Perhaos the
record could show the two areas the witness
has just referred to.

MR. COSMA¥: Will you point
out the first one?

THE WITNESS: Here.

MR. ESTRIM: The witness
is referring to an area at the west end of 2Zhercdeen
Lake and has indicated they would he moving in
a north-south directionl

MR. COSMAM: South-north.

THE COURT: South to north.

MR. COSMAN: If vou could
sit down, Mr. Estrin, I can do the same thinc.

BY MR. COSMAN:

0. You said the herd has

been rerouted. Vhere is th2 herd migrating now?
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2n2. Ungunagai, cr.
(Cosman)

A. ©On the west side of
Be&erly Lake area -- the migration route.

0. So you have indicated
that the herd is now miogratinag west of the area
you indicated thev normally micrated?

A. That's correct.

0. You have indicated that
vou hunt up in the Garry Lake area, and you
have indicated an area marked in green and
denoted by the initials JA-3 on Exhibit P2.

Is that the Beverly Herd that you are huntinc
in that area?

A. I am not sure which
herd this would be, and the older neople micht
probably tell you if it is the same herd as the
Beverly Herd.

0. Do vyou kneocw if there
are any other herds in that area other than the
Beverly Herd?

A. Tnere is the Rathurst
Inlet Eerd, but I am not sure if thev core to

this area.

0. So you are not sure

"as to the migratory Toutes of the caribou in

the northwest area of the Baker Lake Study

"

Area and outside that area, is that correct?

a. No.

eXx.

¢G. Could you indicate where
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Uncunagai,
(Cosman)

cr.

the Kaminuriak Herd is located and describe
its migratory route, if vou can?

| A. The Baker Lake residents
and I have been in Baker Lake most of my life
and I could not give you detailed information
on the micration route of the caribou herd.
Some of the people who have a knowledge of the
migration route would have a better report on
the micration route.

Q. Do vou know if it is
the Kaminuriak Herd that travels up the coast
and into the Baker Lake area?

A. Yes, I am aware that
the Kaminuriak Herd migrates along the coast
up the Baker Lake area.

Q. %Who hunts the Xaminuriak
Herd in addition to the people of the Hamlet of
Baker Lake?

¥What other communities?

A. Baker Lake, Chesterfield,
Rankin, Whale Cove, Eskimo Point.

Q. You indicated the
people in Chesterfield. That is Chesterfield
Inlet?

A. Yes.
0. Can you locate that
on the map, please?

A. (Indicating).

0. You also indicated the

eXx.
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Uncuncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

people at Rankin Inlet hunt the Kaminuriak Frerd.
Where is Rankin Inlet located on the map?

A. (Indicatinag).

0. You have indicated that
you, in your travels, travelled down to
Rankin Inlet. What time of the year did you
travel down to Rankin Inlet?

A. I have been in Rankin
on different seasons, but this is indicating
the transportation by water.

Q. On water. And is it
true that the Kaminuriak Eerd has been wintering
in an area that is close to Rankin Inlet? 2re
you aware of that?

A. I am not aware of
if they winter near Rankin.

0. VYou have also indicated
that the people of Whale Cove have hunted the
Kaminuriak Eerd. 7‘there is the cecrmunity of
Whale Cove.

A. (Indicating).

Q. You are indicating a

2
spot on the map, Exhibit P2, which is towards
the south east corner of the land rmass as shown
on that map. It is on Eudson Bay, is that
correct?

2. Yes.

Q. Are there any other

Inuit peorles or Inuit comrunities that vou ¥row
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(Cosman)

(XY}
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of who hunt the herd?

A. I am aware that there
are places I have indicated earlier where that
community hunts the Kaminuriak Herd.

0. In addition to the
Inuit communities that hunt the Kaminuriak Herd,
are you aware that the Chippewa community in
northern Manitoba also hunts_the herd.

MR, ESTRIN: I take it you
are coing to bring proof to that effect?

TEE COURT: 1Is there
some objection to the cuestion?

MR. ESTRIN: Yes, we have
not heard evidence of that. It is put forward
as an assertion of fact.

THE COURT: I am not sure
that a gquestion in cross-examination to elicit
fresh evidence is out of order.

MR. ESTRIN: I anpreciate
that, My Lord. With respect, I would say
that Mr. Cosman asserted -- it sounds like an
assertion of fact. ‘
TEE COURT: He is entitled
to ask leading guestions.

MR. ESTRIN: If he is
going to prove it, it would be easier. I
have no objection to the substance if he has

any evidence.

eX.
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30e . Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

TEE COURT: I thirk vour
objection has no foundation in practicé, in
law or anything. EHe is entitled to ask leading
guestions. If the witness does not know, he
may say so. I take it vou are not giving evicdence,
Mr. Cosman.

MR. COSMAN: I have not keen
sworn.

PY MR. COSMAN:

Q. Do you know if the
Chippewa Indians in Northern Manitoba communities
hunt the Kaminuriak Herd?

A. Yes, I know that. I
am aware that they hunt that particular herd.

Q. Is it not correct that
one of the concerns of the Wildlife Service
is that there is too much killing of the Kaminuriak
Herd from all the communities that hunt it?
Is that not one 6f the concerns of the Wildlife
Service?

A. Yes, that is correct.
The Wildlife Officers have stated that there are
too many killings in thedKaminuriak Herd.

Q. You mentioned a time,
I believe in 1963-64, when vou were on the
south shore of Baker Lake at the mouth of Fazan
River when vou saw a large herd, is that correct?

Is that your evidence?
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307. UCnouncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

A. That's correct.

Q0. You also indicatec that
vou were surprised that someone in vour qroup
had been akle to tell hefore the herl actuallv
came that it was coinc to come. Ead vou not seen
the herd before at that location?

A. I am aware that they
migrate throuch that area.

0. And-have you seen the
herd migrating through that area kefore 1963-647?

A. Before 1963 and 1964 I
was a bit younger so transportation was a problemn
for us and I didn't hunt at that time around that
area. i

Q. You have-mentioned that
vou had a fish camp at the mouth of the Kazan
River. How many peorle were in that fish carp?

A. I am not guite sure,
but I think there were about over six camrcs.

Q. Did you sav there
were over six camps or six people?

A.& No, six carps.

Q. And how many Inuit
fishermen would use those six camps at any one
time?

A. There were six carps,
and they each have people who were fishinc.

A. At the time that you saw
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Cnguncai, cr. ex.
(Cosmanj

the herd in 1963-64 how many people were in the
camps at that time?

Z. I didn't count them so,
therefore, I am not guite sure how many there were.

0. Vlere all the camps
occupied?

M. Yesi.

0. And can you give me an
approximate number? ‘as there more than one
person in each camp?

A. There were approximately
about five people in each camp.

0. And how close did the
herd come to the camp? )

A. They would core to
as close as maybe one mile to the camps. As
soon as the caribou see a person thev would

deflect from their route.

Q. How long were the camos
at that location? Were they very lonc before
1963-64, to your knowledce?

A. I can't answer that.

I am not sure if there were any fish camps
before 1963-64.

Q. Have they been there

every year since?

A. No.

Q. When were those fish
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208 Unoungai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

camps vacated?

A. I'm not sure when.

Q. At the fish camps did
vou have canoes?

A. Yes, there were canoes.

0. And did these cances
have outboard motors on them?

A. There were not that
many outboard motors, but some portion of the
outboard motors were owned by the covernment
and some by individuals.

Q0. Do vou know how many
outboard motors there were or motorized canoes
there were at that location?

A. I don't recall how
many there were on each canoe, but there were
about probably two owned by the government and
some by the individuals, and at that time the
motors were about three horsepower.

Q. You said that vou had
not hunted before that time because vou were
small ~-- or voung. Had wvou been at the fish
camps prior to 1963-647

A. No, I haven't been
there before that tire.

0. Eow do vou know that
the carikou migrated cn the south shore of

Baker Lake prior to that time?
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210. Ungungai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)
A. Even though I was

younger at that time, I have heard from the
cléder people and from my parents that there was
some caribou herds micratinc on the southern
area of Baker Lake and, in fact, we used to see
some caribou herds micrating on the south end
of Baker Lake. We couldn't get across kecause
we had a transportation problem and there was
this ice between.

0. I'm sorry? Did you say

you could not get across?

A. We were too younc to
Cross over.

Q. You mentioned that vou
shot caribou when you were young on Blueberry Hill
and in the area of the cemetery or just around
the settlement of Baker Lake. Do vou know what

year that was?

A. I can't recall the date,
but I would assume it was around hetween the

fifties and sixties.

Q. Do you recall if there
were caribou in the vicinity of the settlement
of Baker Lake for ten years, approximately,
in the 1950s to the 19€0s? Is that what you
are saying?

A. when we arrived in

this area I remember that there were caribou
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311. Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)
around the area of Baker.
0. FHow many peoctle were

there in the area of the settlement when vou first
arrived here, which I understand was 195172

2. I'm not sure how many
people were in there at that time, but I recall
that there would be the MOT and the Anglican
Mission and the Hudson Bay Cqmpany and also the
RCMP post in Baker Lake when we arrived.

0. Were there any Inuit
people at that tirme in 1951 when vou arrived?

A. 2t that time when we
arrived at Baker Lake there were some Tnuit
people and we were travelling from the sea coast
up to Baker Lake and we came around this area
to see our relatives.

Q. Were there anv other
Inuit people other than your relatives in this
area-at that time?

MR. ESTRIM: What area
are we now referring to?

TIlIF, COURT: The same one
we have been referring to in the last several
guestions, Mr. Estrin.

BY MR. COSMAN:

Q. In the Baker Lake
settlement were there any people other than your

relatives when you first came in 1951 -- Inuit
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Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

people?

A. Yes, there were other
people in Baker Lake, as far as I can remember.

Q. Do you know how many
families?

A. At that time, when I
first arrived in Baker Lake, I was only seven
years old so I wasn't about to count how many
people were here.

0. Was there an airport
at Baker Lake?

A. Yes. It might ke better
if I should say that I don't cuite remember if
there was an airport.

THE COURT: I think that
if we are goinc to take a break this mornina --
I have been waiting for you to finish, tut
we had better take a ten minute recess now.

-—-—Recess

---Upon Resuming

BEY R. COSMAX:

0. 1In your experience as
a hunter, I take it you have seen carikou many
times swimminc across bodies of water, is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. 2a&nd you have seen thenr
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Uncuncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

swim across rivers, have you?

A, VYes.

Q. Eave you seen carihou
swim across lakes?

A, If the lake is not
too large.

0. What is the larcest
distance that you have seen caribou swim across
a lake?

A. I haven't seen any
caribou swimming across a huge lake, but I

have seen some caribou swimming across a small

0. Can you point to the
map and show me some of the lakes that vou have
seen caribou swimming across?

A. TFrom my own exvperience
I have not seen caribou crossing over a lake,
but I have seen them crossing ovef this area
on the 1lake.

Q. You are poirntinc to
the east side of Aherdeen Lake, right where
vour red line dissects with WN-14.

e

A. But the people who
have been around this area will give you
better information on the crossings.

Q

Q. Whv do you say the

people around this area can cive us ketter rerorts
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314. Unoungai, cr.
(Cosman)

on the crossings?

A. The elcders would aive
you a better report.

0. I see.

A. Because the vounger
people would have just heard about these areas,
and the older people had been in that area so,
therefore, they would have a knowledce about
those areas.

Q. On Exhibit P6, which
is right behind you, you have marked certain
red lines as water crossings?

A. Yes, those arz
water crossings.

0. Are these crossings
that vou have marked because the olcder people
or other people have told you or are these
crossings that vou know from vour own personal
experience.

A, From my own experience
I have seen these beinc crossed over.

Q0. Let me refer vou to

a series of red lines extendinag along the Kazan

-
L]

River -- from just above the mouth of the river,

into Baker Lake, dowr as far as or past Thirty
Mile Lake. Have you seen caribou crossing over
all of that area from close to the mouth of

Baker Lake and vast Thirty Mile Lake?

ex.
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Ungungai,
(Cosman)

cr.

Yes, I have seen them

crossing over arouncé that area.

Q.

¥hen did you last see

caribou crossing over in that area?

A.
them crossing over just

18 617 .

did you see them?
A.
had seen them
Q.
indicated you
to 1963—-64 --
A.
0
1967 when you
A.

Baker Lake, but I

my brother-in-iaw -- David Tagoona,

and now Alex Iglouyouak

Baker Lake to the south of Baker

and we saw them back

on an island.

on that island.

in that area --

im L967. X

The last time I saw

above Kazan Falls was in

And hefore that when

And before 1967 I

crossing over in 1963 and 1964.

You have alreacdy

have not done any huntinc prior

is that correct?
Yes, that is correct.

Where were you in

saw the caribou crossinc over?

I was residinc in

went hunting with my father,

rather,
and we went across
Lalle area

remerbered

because the caribou Rerd were crossinc over

<r

Yes.

And we killed carilou

aN

=Py
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31l6. Uncuncgai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

0. Did you shoot many
caribou on that hunting trip?

A. Ve probably killed
about six caribou. That is enouch for the
canoe to carry caribou.

Q. Were there lots of
caribou in the area at that time?

A. There was in the
springtime, so there were a lot of carilkou
herds in July and August.

0. Would you tell the
court akout the technicue vou used in shootinc
caribou at a water crossinc? You mentioned you
shot them on an island. Were they half-way across
the river at that time?

A. They were on the island
when we shot them. We were not shooting any
caribou that were in the water because we didn't
want any wet caribou and we don't.just shoot .
any caribou in the sprinctime because vou just
select a certain kind of caribou.

Q. Ybﬁ select the fattest
ones, do you?

A. Yes.

0. Is it usual to hunt
caribou at a water crossing area? Is that a
good place to hunt caeribou?

A. Since we are hunting,
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217. Unqunoai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)
we hunt caribou in different areas. We are not

necessarily restricted to water crossincs.
0. 2nd how long were vou
in the Kazan River on that particular hunting
trip?
A, We éidn't spend verw
long in the area. We stayed about one nicht.
0. "here was your camp?
A. We didn't have a camp.
As soon as we killed a caribou, we started huntinc

back.

Q. Had you hunteéd in that

area before 196772

A. I just mentioned that
there were some caribou herd in 1963 and 64.
Q. Did you have a carn»

at that time?

A. You asked me that

question before.

Q. You are referrina to
the same camp -- the fish camp?
A. Yes.

0. If caribou do not
v
cross in one area of a river, Mr. Unaguncai,
deo they cross in another area?

A. Yes, they cross over

in some other areas.

LD

Mr. Uncungai, do vou know
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318 Cncungai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

the distance from the mouth of the river, the
Kazan River,to the line you marked down to the
south of Thirty Mile Lake? Do you know now long
the distance is?
A. The lenath of the area?
0. Yes. |
A. In whatterms?
Q. In miles.
A. I am not aware about
the exact mileage but I would give you an

approximate distance.

Q. That would ke fine.

A, To here.

Q. Yes, please.

A. Twenty-five.

0. Twenty-five miles.
Okavy.

A. ¥why did you ask thet
cuestion?

O. You mentioned that
when working for the Wildlife Service you had
taken an airplane to assist in monitoring the
caribou herd?

“a. Yes, that's riaght.

0. Does the 1ildlife Eervice

reqularly use aircraft to monitor the caribcu

herds?

A. Yes.
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Uncuncai, cr.

(Cosman)

I believe that vou

mentioned that vou flew in a Beaver airplane

on the particular day that vou referred to in

vour evidence

was that?

in chief

. that time of vear

2. Somewhere in the month
of June -- around the beginning of June.
Q. Did vou see the caribou

herd from the aircraft?

A.
Q-
altitude vou were flying
A.
what the altitude was.
0.
herd doing when you saw

&,

Yes, we saw them.
Do you kncw at what
?
No, I don't recall
What was the caribou
them?

Well, I'm not cuite

sure what they were doing.

0.
2.
altitute of

they are calving,

the aircraft.

Were they stationarv?
It also cdepends on the

In the month of June

so their could be various

eX.

activities like some would be stationary and some

"would be somewhere else.

@,

-.

211 richt. Did the mov

of the herd change in any way when you flew over

them on that occasion?

A.

The herd changed. It

ement
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320. Uncuncai, cr. ex.
(Cosman)

changes when an aircraft is flying at a low level
of altituce.

0. Do vou know what
altitude that is?

A, HNo.

Q. Were you flying close
to the herd that day -- close over the herd
or were you flying at a heicht that did not
bother the herd?

A. At that time when we
were doing the survey I couldn't really tell
from a high altitude so, therefore, we have
to come down lower in orcder to find out whether
they were calves or females.

(). Was the plane that you
were flying so low that the herd was bothered?

A. As soon as the aircraft

is at a low level, altitude, the caribou herd

'is bothered.

0. But I want to know
on that particular day did the caribou herd
react in any way to the airplane that vou

were flying?

“v

A. Yo, I can't quite
recall that day.
0. Is it fair, Mr. Ungungai,

to say that if the airplanes maintain a certain

altitude that the caribou herds are not bothered,
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... Unecungai,; cr, ex.
(Cosman)

bqsed on your experience?

A. I can't answer that
question. The caribou herd would he hothered
by a low level aircraft, but I don't think thev
would be bothered bv an aircraft that was flving
as high as the jets co.

MR. COSMAXN: Thank you
very much, Mr. Ungungai.

THE COURT: I woncder,
rather than have me remind him of that questioning
later, if you would follow up the guestioning
with regard to whether he was using binoculars,
aerial photocraphs and he would co home and
count them later on or do they physically come
close enough to distinguish whether the caribou
is male or female, which he seems to be indicatinc.

BY MR. COSMAM:

0. Could you explain, Mr.
Unguncai, what the technigues are for monitoring
a herd from an airpmlane? Do the Wildlife Qfficers
use binoculars or photocraphic equipmrent?

A. On the aircraft we
usually use the binoculars and sometimes you
can't really tell wﬂéther it is fermale or male
from an aircraft. .

MR. COSMAN: Thanl vou very

much .
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Uncuncai, cr. ex.
(Eeintzman)

—-~-CROSS-EXAMIVATION BY MR, HEINTZIZMAM:

Q. Mr. Uricungai, I think
you indicated that you come from the coast at
a place called Corbet Inlet, is that correct?

A. That's correct.

0. 2and did your father

and grandfather come from that same area, as

well?

2. Yes.

Q. When you lived on the
coast -- and you may not remerber these cdetails

because you came here when you were so young,
but if you can help us from what you learned
from your parents -- did they used to hunt
the sea- animals?

A. Yes.

0. What sort of sea animals
did your people hunt?

A, Seals and anything else
that lives on the sea, I guess.

., Whales?

A. I can't remember the

sea animals that were hunted when we were living

-
L]

on the sea coast, but I recall that we would travel
towards the inland from the sea coast.

0. So from time to time you
would go inland to hunt caribou, as well, is

that correct?
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Uncungai, cr.
(Eeintzman)

Yes.

(AT

A.
Q. 2and when vou went inland

would vou co in and hunt what we call the

Kaminuriak Herd?

A. At that time we weren't

sure which herd it was, but it could have heen
prohably that Kaminuriak Eerd.

0. When you came inland
would vou meet other groups hunting the
Kaminuriak Herd?

A. Well, at that time
I was reallv too voung, so some of these
guestions might be vague. 2t that time I
was three and four, so vou would prokakly he
in the same situation if I asked yvou.questions
of what vou did when you were three or four.

Q. I appreciate that.

ILet me put it this way: was it the custom

of the Inuit, for instance, that vour people
from the coast could come in and hunt the same
caribou on the same land as groups from that
area?

A. Yes.

0. 1Is it not correct,
Mr. Ungungai, that in those days peonle would
travel great distances to hunt the caribou?

A. Ves, that's correct.

Q. In fact,in those days
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Uncungai, cr. ex.
(Feintzmran)

they would travel much cgreater distances than the

hunters today would be usecd to?

A. Can vou clarifv on the
distance?

Q. I have not gone hunting
caribou myself. I am just asking vou if it is

not correct in those days that hunters would
go distances that would seem far for hunters
todav? |

A. At that time thev
probably did travel to farther distances because
they weren't stationary like we are today --
like we are in Raker lLake so, therefore, we
stay in Baker Lake area and it is just a matter
of travelling probably down to Rankin Inlet and
back.

Q. Todav you are wearinc
clothes somewhat like mine. Do you wear those
kinds of clothes through the months of thec
summer? I mean not like this. You wear the
kind of clothes that I would wear when I am
working on-a farm. Is }hat the tvpe of clothes
you normally wear?

A. At that time we probably
had some similarities. We were all dressed
in tracditional clothes like of carihou.

0. I er talkinc about

the clothes you are wearinc today. 2Zre thev
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2215, Uncuncai, cr.
(Feintzman)

the kincé of clothing you would norrmally wear in
the summner?

A. 2t that tire?

A. Yo, todav. I want
to know if the tvpe of clothes vou are wearinc

today is the tvre vou would norrallv wear in

1197972

A. VYes, that is the
tvre of clothes I have been wearing in 19792.

Q. £~nd have vou Lteen
wearing this tvpe of clothes since vou have
been living in Baker Lake?

A. Yes, in the summer.

Q0. 2nd do vou ever wear
clothes made of caribou?

A. VYNot in the summer.

0. At anv time?

A. Tocdav we still wear
the traditional clothes when we are out uenting,
like the caribou footwear and clothing.

Q. Can you tell me, Mr.
Ungungai -- I just arrived in Laker Lake --

were the houses which are now in Baker Lake

e . o —
similar to those here when vou arrived 1in

1251°?
A. 1Yo. Some weren't built
at that tirme.

Q. Some were built at that




“ v 326 Uncuncai, cr. ex.
E (Feintzman)
in .
j A tine?
T
2 I A. liere not.
m M
' R 0. Ccome weren't. llere
. 5 E . .
= P there a few that were built at that time?
(0]
$ 2. There weren't that manv
- I
i N at that time. They were just a few at that tire.
: G
0. And were most of them
= S
E .
0 R built from 1258 and afterwards?
. v
o é A. I don't recall the exact
g |
E year, but some were built.
:‘Z.r_
& R 0. And cdo you recall that
o E a large number of peonle moved into Raker Lake
& 15 4 around 1958 throuch to 1960?
(0]
o ﬁ A. Yes, I remember.
] &
S Q. And were the houses
iz S
g 8 built by the government?
| -
C A. Yes.
‘|
) 0 S 0. And can vou tell me on
- g what basis each family lives in each house? 1Is
! O there a lease? Is there a permit? Iow exactly
T
= | X dces each family occupy each house?
W .
A A. I am not guite sure
‘A 0o ;
] 25 N on that gquestion.
T N .
L A N. The house that you live
N R
| é in is owned by the government, as I understand?
:#— 5 TEE COURT: I think you may
u :
1 be dealing with concepts somewhat foreign to this
- 0 . e e
30 7 witness. If this line of cuestioning is important,
o0
3
o
l
-
r
- 5
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' E (Heintzman)
. 5
]_ B I am sure you can ¢et that evidence from the
A
: ? Department of Indian and Y¥orthern Affairs.
." M .
| What deces occur to me 1is
R
o 5 E what you were interested in finding¢ out and
' 0 : : :
| R did not, and that is what type of housina the
it
m L natives lived in when he arrived at the settlement.
G "I suppose the 2nglican Missionary and the
— S
i E Mounted Police lived in houses of some sort
o &
: I or other.,
r (O
! E BY MR. HEIMNTZMAIL:
S
r R Q. TWhat tyre of houses
' E did the Inuit live in when you arrived in 19517?
r' s 3 Is it the type of houses we see today or were
o .
H they different houses?
A
r' g A. TWhen we first arrived
r. g in Baker Lake area the tyre of houses we lived in
N
t c vere igloos and the MOT, 2Anglican Mission, Roman
-r’ S Catholic Mission, had their own houses.
20
R Q0. 2nd in the sumrmer you
r. 0 lived in what?
T
r‘ T A. In the summer we used
A
* X to be in tents.
0 Q. You have given your
25 N
I ‘estimate of the numbét of caribou taken each
R . a5 K
F‘ 1 vear by Baker Lake residents. Are you familiar
O “
- with the IDS Study which was done last year where
S
i f an estimate of the number of caribou taken each
— 0 year by the Baker Lake residents was race?
| Iy
3

S

i |

s
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(tieintzman)

A. TVhen vou are referring
to IDS what is that?

. IDS, as I understand
it, is a group that were hired by the covernment
to come and make a study of the caribou and other
animals in the Caker Lake area?

A. This group vou are
referring to -- I am not aware of that group
that did the study.

0. I understand that they
came into the community --

MR. GOLDEN: Perhewns Mr.
Heintzman should not ke pursuing something with
the witness that is okviously fruitless.

THE COURT: I don't thinlk
you can ask him many questions about the studv
until you find out if he knows anything about it
at all.

MR. GOLDENM: It is hardly
worth while when the witness doesn't know
anything about it at all and he is not
directly, I don't think, obstructing in any
vay .

~THE COURT: I have the
impression the witness does not have any icdea
what he is talking abo;t;

MR. GOLPEM: I think my

friend is pursuinc obscure areas with the witness

Uncgungai, cr. ex.
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329. Uncungai, cr. ex.

(feintzmran)
which are not obscure to us but obscure to the
witness and takineg a lot of tire.

TEE COURT: Mavbe, hut we
are pretty close to noon, anyway.

BY MR. HEINTZMAL:

N. It is my uncderstandinc,
Mr. Ungungai, that a group came into Baker Lake,
hired by the government, and one of the things
they tried to do is estimate the number of caribou
taken each year by the Baker Lake residents and
they spoke to the Fish and 'Wildlife Officer and
people in the community to try to determine
that figure. Were you aware that was beinc done?
I am thinking about 1977-1978?

A. I am still not clear
which group you are referring to. Unless vou
state the name, and maybe I would --

0. The nare is callecd
Interdisciplinary Systems or, short, IDS. 1In
their remort they sav that they talked to
Mr. Stewart, who I think you said was the
Fish and Wildlife Officer in Baker Lake. Do
you recall this group talking to Mr. Stewart?

“A, FNo.
MR. HEINTZMAMN: The witness

indicates he doesn't. I will not pursue that.

Thank you. Those are all

my questions.
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330. Uncuncai, cr. ex.
(Scavias)

TIZIE COURT: In that case
we will recess now until 1:20.
-—-Luncheon Adjournment
-—~-Upon Resuming at 1:30 p.m.

—-——CROSS-EMAMINATION BY MR, SCAVYIAS

Q. Mr. Unoungai, would
you refer to the map, Exhibit P2, please. Did
I understand you correctly that you macde this
trip -- marked with a red line in the upper
left hand corner -- to Garry Lake in 19702
A. Yes.

. Is that the only trip

vou made to Garry Lake?

A. VYes.

Q0. That was on business
related to your job?

A. VYes.

0. And Mr. Unguncai, looking
at Exhibit P2, on the bottom left.hand corner,
the red lines extendinc through to Dubawnt and
possibly beyond, was that trip racde in 19792

A. Yes.

Q0. Is that the only trip

"

you made to Dubawnt Lake?

A, Yes.
. TUWhy did you make that
Lrip

A. I was wolf hunting.
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Uncuncai, cr.
(Sgayias)

0. Mr. Ungungai, on Ixhibit
P2, in the lower right hancé corner, there is a
red line externdinc from the settlerment of Eaker
Lake down into Rankin Inlet and possihlv keyond.
¥Was that a visit to Rankin Inlet?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Ungungai, vou have
told the court about a survey done by young
people for the game office of how many caribou
are taken by the reople in Baker Lake. For
how long had that tvpe of survey heen done --
the one which people c¢o from house to hcuse?

A. I can't recall the
exact time when this survey had started, as
I have only bheen with the fish and Wildlife
office for the last two vears. It may have
started before.

Q. When you were with
the Fish and Wildlife as a patrolman, which
I believe was up to 1971, did they have such
a survey then?

A. 1Yo, there were no such
surveys. I can't recall of any.

&‘Q. Mr. Uncguncai, you
told the court about licences issued to the
Inuit in Baker Lake to hunt caribou. 2re

those issued by the game office?

A. Yes, those licences arc

<~
Py
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382. Uncuncai, cr.

(Sgayias)

issued by the Fish and %Wildlife Officers. 1In
their absence they are issued hv the RCMP.

Q. 2re thev issued each
vear?

A. Those licences are
issued on a vearly basis. They expire on the
last day of June of every vear.

0. In the last vear do
vou know how many licences of that tyme were
issued to the people in Baker Lake?

A. I can't sav for sure
exXactly how many people cot those general

hunting licences.

D

Do you know,
apprcximately?

A. Yo, I'm afraid I
cannot even guess it on a cuessing rasis.

Q0. Mr. Unguncai, were
vou residing in PBaker Lake in 1975 and 19767

A. Yes,

C. Do vou know whether
there were caribou wintering north of Baker
Lake in 1975-767?

'A. I can't cuite recall

v

Py

if it was around 1975-76 when they were wintering

"

north of Zaker Lake all along the shore.

MR. GCLDEY: TFfor the record,

the witness indicated the north shore of Taker Lake.
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8l Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Sgavyias)

BY MR. SGAYIAS:

0. Were those caribou
you have just described hunted by the peonle
of Baker Lake?

A. Yes.

0. Mr. Uncungai, do vou
know which herd of caribou those caribou belonced
teR

A. I don't think anvone
really knows what herd that caribou herd kelonged
to, but I think most of us thoucht it belonced
to the Kaminuriak Herd.

Q. Mr. Ungungai, vou
told us yesterday ekout countinc carikou when
you were on the cround. I believe you said it
was the Beverly Herc. When was that?

A. It was durinag the month
of June of last vyear.

0. Could vou show us on
Exhibit P2, this map, where vou were ohserving
those caribou?

. (Indicating).

MR. SGAYIAS: The witness

"is marking an X with'pencil at the extreme

western end of Aberdeen lLake.
0w
THE WITHUESS: This ¥ is where

the cabin is. The rarking on the map there is

a cabin where thev were staticned in that cabin.
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334. Ungurgai, cr. e:x.
{(Scayias)

Then we travelled from the cakin, by heliconter,
in this area. I cannot pinpoint the exact

spot on the map there, but we did travel by
helicopter in this area. Perhaos, if vou recuire
the exact information on that, we do have that

in the office.

MR. SGAYIAS: The witness
and the interpreter are showing the area on the
extreme left-hand side of the map, near the middle.

TEE CCURT: Is that the came
preserve?

TE WITHRESS: VYes

BY IMR. SGAVIAS:

0. Ead the caribou had

their calves when you were there?

-

A. Yes, they alreacy
had their calves when we were nct there vet.
Q. What were vou countinc?
A. We were counting the
numbers of the calves that had surwvived and also
keeping a count of the calves that have not

survived, along with the fermale caribou that have

not given birth to calves.

Q. 2m I correct that vou
are not counting how many caribou there were
altocether, kut how many of a different tvre of

caribou there were?

A, Yes, that was my uncerstandinc
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v 335. Unguncai, cr. ex.
E (Sgavias)
R
B
? and acain, as I was only helping to count these
_ @ caribou, I am not sure exactlv what the specific
R idea was.
5 E
g Q. Was that counting done
$ for Mr. Doug Stewart whom vou referredé to hbefore?
é A. Yes, Mr. Stewart was
s one and we were mainly helping out Bill Darby
10 g doing this counting.
éA 0. And, Mr. Ungungai, you
g referred to the fact that you worked for the
5 game office. Is that the game office for the
. government of the Northwest Territories?
15 é A. Yes, because that is
i the only came office.
g Q. Mr. Uncuncai, I understood
S you to say vesterdav that at this time of vear
C vou don't hunt cows kecause they.are carrving
20 s calves. Did I understand that correctlv?
R A. VYes, thaf is correct.
? Not because we have been told not to kill a cow
I that is going to be c¢iving birth to these calves,
z but, as hunters, we know it is important to
25 2 save the numker of animals and, therefcre, we
g don't kill these beééuse they are coing to be
é giving birth to a calf in any given day now but
5 rather we kill bulls.
2
! Q0. 2nd at otrer times of
ﬁl_g the year -- are theretimes of the vear when vou co
0
3
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B3l Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Sgavias)

hunt cows?

A. Yes, durincg the winter
season -- durinc the wintertime we kill cows
during that time of the year. The bulls are =--
thé meat does not taste as it should so, therefcre,
we go for the cows durinc the winter season.

N. 2nd I understancé that
during the winter the bulls would not have very
rmuch fat on them, is that correct?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. 2nd the cows would have
more fat than a bull would have?

A. Yes.

Q. &and are you aware that
the cows are carrving unkorn calves durinc the
winter -- let's say January or T'ehruary?

2. Yes, we know that,
but then when would ke the time for us to
be able to kill female caribou?

Q. Mr. Uncuncai, vou
describe that when vou were voung and care
to Baker Lake you hunted caribou at Rlueberry

Hill and near the gravevard. Yhat tirme of vear

" would vou have hunted those carihou?

A. This would ke during
"

the early fall. It would he around curing the

month of August.

Q. Do vyou know from what
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3.3 Uncuncai, cr. e
(Scavias)

.
1%
.

herd those caribou would have come from?

A. No. Yo, I woulén't
be able to say.

Q0. Mr. Ungungai, I am
showing you Exhibit P6, a map on which vou
have marked in red certain crossina areas.

Have you ever gone to any of those crossinag
areas for the purmose of hunting the caribou?

A. 2s I mentioned earlier,
there is one specific caribou crossing that I
have personally experienced and that is this
particular area here where I mentioned earlier
where I had some caribou crossing where the
islands are. 2t the other areas where I have
marked on the map are areas that I have hearcd
from the older pneople that are used for caribou
crossings. Just one other area on part of the
Aberdeen Lake towards the west side of Aberdeen
is another area where I have been in to help
with the caribou tagging.

Q0. Just for the record,
the first area referred to -- the one with the

islands, along the ¥azan River, in the area

" south of Baker Lake —-

A. As I mentioned earlier,

"
there is one specific area where I mentioned earlier
where there had heen a large carihou crossinc in

this aresa. Again, in these other areas I have
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. Uweurrcal, .
(Scavias)

marked on the map, I have seen some caribou
crossing but not in larce groups.

0

vou saw caribou crossince in larce nunmkers, do

ell.

0. Lookinc at the area where

vou recall the time of the vear vou saw the larce

number cross?

2. That would ke durinrng th

month of July-August.

. Vouléd that ke mainlwv

e

cows, bulls or both?

2. They were all mixed.
n. and from what direction
were these crossings from -- east to west?

A. 2s I mertioneé this

M

rmorning, the caribou herdé would move alonc thre
lake, coinc west, ancd alonc tke river. Cnce

~

thev crosssd, they would continue to move west.

N. You told us zahout in 19

when investic

I-h

ting a siting of carikou in th

)
D

Yazan Falls area that vou went out after wou
heard aktout a sitinc of carikcu. DCo:culnow where
those carikou went?

A. I wouldn't re akle to
tell vou exactly in which direction thev may
rnave gone, but I am sure that some of those
caribou rhave crossed in scre area of the £falls
there near the Xazan River -- have crossed anc
noved cn west because later on that same vear

somne of them were returninc back again and those

e

s Nl
1 <
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339. Unguncai, cr. ex.
(Scayias)
caribou were sited at the Kazan River -- I presume

most of those have travelled kack inland or
towards the south side of the river.

Q. I believe, Mr. Ungungai,
that vou told us that Mr. Darby went out to
investigate that report of caribou, is that
corrects?

A. That's correct.

ol And.did Mr. Darby,
to your knowledge, send out four of his
assistants to look for the caribou in that
area??

A. Yes. But, unfortunately
they went in that area late. If I understand,
they had a counting of somewhere in the
neichktourhooc¢ of two thousand but, unfortunately,
as I mentioned before, they went in there late.

Q. So they missed the
caribou?

A. VYes, they missed the
caribou.

0., Mr. Ungungai, do you
know where the Kaminuriakx Eerd has its calving
cground or where the Kaminurialt Herd calves?

A. I have not personally
evperienced the Kaminuriak Eeré when they are
calving.

0. Do you know where the




1

15

"
E
R
B
A
T
I
M
R
S E
P
6]
R
T
I
N
G
S
E
R
0 \Y
I
C
E
S
R
E
5 J
0
H
A
N
S
S
6]
N
C
0 °
R
0]
T
T
A
W
A
o)
S N
T
A
R
I
0
5
2
1
0
0 7
0
3

340. Unguncai, cr.
(Scavias)

Feverlyv Herd calves?

2, Yes. In recard
to the Reverly Eeré, I know the ceneral area
where they calve, hecause I mentioned hefore
we have been in there huntinc these caritou.
They would calve just immediatelyv west of
this Sand Eills -- Sand Lake area -- just
this immediate area.

In the earlier vears
they used to calve closer to this area here.
But nrow, unfortunatelyv, thev have started
to calve in a farther area.

MR. SGAYIAS: The first
area mentioned, for the record, was hroacdlv
between Sand Lake and the left edce of the
map.

The second area aonears
south and east of Sand Lake and north of
Aberdeen Lake. .

BY MR. SCAYIAS:

Q. Mr. Ungungai, I helieve
you said that the migration of the Eeverly
caribou had moved west?

A, Yes, that is correct.

. In what yvear did you
observe that migration move west?

2. Acain I cannot recall

the exact vear thev changed direction kut I know

eX.
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341, Uncungai, cr.
{Sy avias)

for sure that during the early 1960s, when we
used to.tag caribou -- we had a caribou tagginc
area -- we used to tag them in this area andé
there used to he creat numbhers in there.

Q. Fow many vears were
yvou involved in caribou tagging?

A. I helped out with the
caribou tagging on two summers during the early
1960s.

0. Vhen vou were involved
in the tagging, how manv animals would be
tagged bv the people doing the tagging?

A. On nost davs, as I
mentioned before, I was a person just helping
with these jobs that have to be done. It
wasn't up to me to count of how many caribou
to be tagged. ¥We were just doing what we were
being told. I was not in a position to leer
count of the number of caribou that were taccged.

But I found out later that
we were able to tac anywhere -- the number of
five hundred to eicht tkousand caribou in
the early sixties. But in 1977 we were only
able to tag twentv-five caribou because there
were none that came by that vear. Acain,
it is just a guessing numter -- the five
auncred¢ to a thousand. It is not the e:act

figure.

eX.
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(Colcen)

MR. SCAYIAS: These are all
of my questions. Thank vou.
-——-RE-EXAMINATION RY MF. (SOLDEI :

Q. Mr. Uncuncai, you
were asked about what is called a general
huntinc licence. !ay I ask vou, sir, co the
Inuit get what is called a ceneral huntina
licence from your office?

2. Yes, they do.

Q. 2And céces vour office
ever refuse to cive a ceneral huntina licence
to an Inuit?

2. Mot so far as I know.

0. Is there any charce
for a ceneral hunting licence? Dces it cost
anything?

2. Yo, it is free.

0. Dces that licence
in any way restrict the number of caribou that
can be hunted by an Inuit?

A. Yo, there is no limit.

.. Is there any time of
vear that the Inuit are stopned from hunting
caritou?

A. I can recall --1I
believe there was during the 1°5Cs that peopnle

were asled not to hunt durinc the summer season

a female carirou. I helieve *+his was dcne for a

2 Uncuncei, re e:.
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343, ‘nouncai, re e:l.
- =}

veriocé¢ of a vear. Dut since that tire I car't
recall énythinq thet people have heen tecld rot
to kXill or rot to hunt any tire of the vear.
It is now since that time been orpen that one
can hunt any time of the vear.

N, Is there a different
licence civen to non-Inuit hunters?

A, VYes, non-Inuit peonle
are given different licences and these licences
they pay for.

0. 2re they allowed to
hunt all the caribou they want?

A. Yo, these licences
only allow a person to cet five carikou rer
vear. That is up to a vear aco or a little
over a vear aco now. Iut I kelieve now that
nunber has been reduced since.

0., VYou were asked zahout
aircraft and flyinc over carikou in surveying
aircraft. Based on your experience with carikou
and aircraft, what hanpens to a herd of carikou
when they see or hear an airplane?

A. 2s I menticned, 1if
an aircraft is flyving low enough that it will
have an effect on a larce number of carilou,
they will naturallv take off in cdifferent directions.

Again, as I mentioned

earlier this morninc, if an aircraft is flvinc
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344, Uncuncai, re e::.
(Golden)

I assume that cdoesn't have as much effect as

it would if it was flvinc lower. I know if an
aircraft is loud enough that the carikou hear
tle sound of an aircraft, then they take off

in different directions; fcr example, even a
ski~-doo =-- a ski-doo could be a distance

away from caribou and maybe the carikou can't
see it, but they can hear the scund of a ski-doo
travelling and if the ski-doo is travellinc fast
enouch, it will disturb carilkou.

I don't know whv for sure
why a group of caribou would take off just by
hearing a sound of a ski-doo from a distance.
Perhaps it mayv be that at one time or another
they have been -- maybe somelrody scarecd them
with a ski-doo or perhaps thev are now at a
point where they are used to hearing the soundé
of an aircraft, but they feel it mav be an
aircraft. If a ski-doo is travellinc fast
enouch, even if they cannot see it, they will
take off.

0.« You were asked ahout
where you once lived on the coast when you were
a very young boy living with your family. Do
you ever remember a time when you Jdid not eat
caribou?

A. Yo, I can't recall

any time we were not eating carihou. I seem to
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345. Gncuncai, re ex,.
(Golcen)

remember that we always had caribou at that
tirme.

¢G. &nd do vou heve brothers
and sisters who were born other nlaces than
the coast?

A, Yes, one of ry brothers
and one of my sisters were rorn on the coast ancd
the rest of my brothers and sisters were korn
here on Baker Lake.

Q0. How many are the
rest?

A. Three of them were
born here on Baker Lake.

0. Were any bkorn on the
land?

A. DMNo, thev were born in
the settlerment here.

0. You were as¥ecd wvhether
vou travelled great distances to hunt carilrou.
Can you tell us, please, in the tirmes Lefore
yvou lived in Baker Lake, before you actually
moved to the settlemente Aid you live in
any one place?

A. No, durinc the tire we
were livinc on the land we were not living in
one area all the time. ‘e were travelling from
one place to another.

0. Yr. Ungquncai, vou were
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346. Uncungai, re ex.
(Colcen)

asked about your clothing. Do I see vou wearing

kamiks?

A. No.

Q. Leather boots? Did
vou wear them yesterday -- ¥Kamiks?

A. Yes.

Q. What do you normally
wear when it is not too muddy?

2. I uéually wear
anything. 1In town I wear somethincg lile that.
Funting I wear sealskin or carikou koots.

0. My friend was interested
in vour clothes. Do you have a parka?

A.  Yes.

Q. Do you have more. than one
parka?

A. Yes.

Q. It may interest you
to know that we stole them from you. We korrowed
the idea. We took the idea of a marka from you.
In the south we wear parkesand we take them from
the Inuit. Mr. Sgayias‘asked vou about the
trip vou took to Garry Lake. Is that the onlv
time you had ever been to Garry Lake?

A. Yes, I had no other
reason to make a trin up to that area hefore.

N. You were asled about

the herd@ that wintered to the north cf Paker Lale.
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v 347 Uncungai, rs ex.
; E (Golcen)
s f;
‘ A You incdicated an area to the north shore of
i =
?. & Baker Lake. You said that people thoucht that
‘ R it is part of the Haminuriak Herd but vou den't
= 1E
r P really know to which herd it belonged@ to. t'hy
’ (0]
E
? do people think it is part of the llamirnuriak
r I
i N Herd? Are there any reasons?
' G
- S A. Yes, 1t is guite simple
4 E
‘ 0 R to tell if this caribou was part of the Kaminuriak
\
o é Herd because during that time there were no
|
' E 1
S caribou along the coast. In such places as
;f‘ R Eskimo Point there was nothinc there when we
E .
i had caribou up here. In fact,we were told that
{ 15 é a lot of the inland people were unhapov because
fr- E they were accusinc the Inuits of killinc too
J S many caribou that they were running out of
S
!"‘ O - .
-3 N caribou in the southern areas.
i h
C Q. The rest of the
., .
E 0 S Kaminuriak Herd or what is called the Karinuriak
R ) 3 .
i ] Herd, Jjust south of Baker Lake, ¢o vou know
? where it migrates to in the winter?
T :
o | A A. Yes, these caribou
= i
A herds -~ most of the herxd will srend the winter
=1 e} . ;
4 25 N somewhere well inland — perhaps in the area
T
g A close by Eskimo Point, but I have alwavs heard
R
= é that some of these caribou will co down towarcds
. 5 the tree line to winter.
L 4 )
! 0. And these ones to the
= 0
3 30 7 north of Baker Lake, do they o to the scuth of
- — 0
3
—
n
|

]
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Ungungai, re ex.
(Golcden)

Baker Lake or do they stay to the north?

A. Acgain, the carikou
herd that winters Zust on the north shore of
Baker Lake -- acain, I am not sure exactly
which direction *hev mav have travelled. Perhaps
there are other hunters who would be ahle to
give you that information. BRBut, of course,
we were not there to watch which direction
they were goinc to take, so I can't cive vou
the exact location.

0. You were asked ahout
a tagcing program. You said that back in the
early sixties -- I don't have the exact figure =--
but it was in the early sixties that vou tacced
somewhere between five hundred and a thousand.
Where was that tagging done?

A. During the early
sixties, as I mentioned before, when we were
tagging caribou we would be tagcing caribou
in their crossing in this particular area.

This area is called by most peownle Rox Cressing.
This has been a name ir,; that particular area
where a lot of caribou were crossinc where we
did the caribou tagging.

0. Is it a water crossing?

2. Yes.

. In 1977 vou said

you were able to tag twenty-five. First of all,
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Unguncai, re ex.
(Colcen)

where did you try to tag the twenty-five? Tthere
dicd you-try to tag the caribou that tire?

A. Acain in the same
area.

0. I see. 2nd why did
you only tag twenty-five?

A. The reason is we were
only able to tag that many carikou. Z2gain,
there was nothing that came throuch that area
last yvear and it was our understandinc that
from that time on they have moved away from this
ceneral area where they used %o creoss. on a yearly
basis back kteyond the Beverly Lake.

Q. From what time on --
after what time did they stop crossing there?

A. BAgain I can't tell you
the exact time of the vear —— the time when they
had stopped using this area for crossina.

But, as I mentioned earlier, I have conly been

back to work with the Fish and Wildlife people

for two years now, as I was not working with them
before that time. But,<again, as I mentioned
before, this was during 1277 when we only tacced
twenty-five carikou in thet area. Ve learned that
at least at that time -- at least that time we
iearned that they had movec¢ on into a different
direction anc¢, again, during the same time, after

we had tacged these twenty-five cariliou, when we




==

=a o=
T

B

N

ony DO

ym=p |

B G am B

-

=

-

9

[9¥)
IO

m:- ® VMmO—=<AMN QZ—~—X0vmx L——-pwodm<<

e - O Z0vnZP» KO-

O—m» =420 »E€>»-H-H0

WO NO 1 = BNW

350 . Uncuncai, re ex.
(GCelcen)

returned to the community I tallked to the
rerson &ho tsed to live in this area to trv
to £indé out whether there are sore vears when
these caribou don't come through there. Ee
advised me they don't come through there uvery
year. In fact,they start coming throuch that
area in the month of May and cross there on
a yearly basis. We were told by the peorle
who used to live in that area and other neoprle
in the community have advised us that they have
moved away from that area now and thev no loncer
cross throuch there, so they have moved farther
away west.
MR. GCLDEN: Thank vou very
much, Mr. Uncuncai. I have no further cuestions.
THL COURT: Thank you vervy

much .
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BARNABAS PERYOUAR, Baker Lake, N.W.T., Sworn

(Throuch Interpreter John Pudnak)

EXAMINATION IN CHIEF BY MR. GOLDEN:

THE WITNESS: I am now 5€ years
of ace.

MR. GOLDEN: Q. Mr. Peryouar,
I would like to ask you some guestions, if I may, and

ask you to help us. You are now 56 years of ace.

You told us that?
Yes.

Will you say yes or no?

Yes.

o r» O ¥

. Do you know where you
were born?

A. Yes, I can point it out to
you on the map, if you wish.

Q. Would you, please?

A. (Indicating)

Q. Thank you. He is
indicating an area to the western edge of the lake

just at the line which is marked on the map already

as WN4.

I won't mark the spot. We have
a number of marks to meake, and I don't want to abuse

the markings.

Did you live with your parents
and your family in that place for a while, or did

you move around?

A. Up to the near 1943 we were

moving in different areas along the lakeshore down
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Peryouar, in ch.
(Golden)

towards the Kazan River. We did move into different
areas when I was growing up right up until 1943.
| Q. In 1943 you would have
been 19 years old, is that right?
A. That is correct.
Q. When did you get married?
A. That same vear, 1943.
Q. Did that change your life?
A. No, it didn't change my
life. But then, of course, I had to work harder and
I was able to travel on my own in any direction that
I wanted to travel. I was able to go anywhere I

wanted to go on my own.

Q. How long have you hunted
caribou?

A. I have not known other
than the caribou meat since the time perhaps I was
born up to 1958.

Q. And what happened in 19587

A. During the year 1958, of
course, I was travelling by dog team in those days.

I was asked to put out poisoned bait to catch wolves
and asked to come into the community to do this sort
of work.

Q. When did you begin to live
in Baker Lake?

A. That would have been during
about the same time in 1958. Once I started working,

my family started to stay within the community.
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353.

Peryouar, in ch.
(Golden)

Q. Have you continued to hunt

since 1958?

A. Yes, I have continued to
hunt since 1958.

Q. What do you hunt?

A. Because the Baker Lake area
does not have the animals, naturally, when I am
hunting for food, I have to hunt for caribou.

Q. Mr. Peryouar, I understand
that you have kept a written record of your hunting
trips. Can you tell us when you began to keep a
written record of your hunting trips?

A. If I was to try to give you
the exact time of when I started keeping these
records, I would make a mistake if I try to tell
you some of the events that had happened beyond 1937.
But, I feel I would ke able to give you some accurate
details if I tell you from 1937.

Q. Do you have that record or
the information written down with you?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. When you first started
writing in the early years, where did you write it

“
down? On what did you write it down?

A. Yes, unfortunately, the
actual records that I have kept have been destroyed,
but since that, what I have recorded though I have
recorded the year but nothing in the wav of a diary.
Unfortunately, the records that I had before have

been destroyed.
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Q. Does the paper you have
here now -- was it made while you still had the

other records and before they were destroyed?

A. Again, I don't have the
exact activities that happened in any of these
particular dates during that year. But, as I
mentioned earlier, I do not have the exact same records
that I had before now with me. But I do have the
years at the time some of the activities that
happened in some of those years.

0. How did you make that record
that you have here now?

A. The record that I have now
are the records that only indicate, as I have
mentioned before, the years -- the changes that took
place on certain different years. Again, these are
only recorded and not as the original records that
I had.

Q. I would like you to tell
me, please, how you made the record that you have
here now. Where did you get the information from to
write down what you have in front of you?

A. _,The present records that I
have now are taken from the original records but,
unfortunately, some of the pages on the original
records have been destroyed. I am not able to read
some of the writing I have done before in the
original records I have but I do have the years. I

have the years and some of the activities that I was
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able to read from the old records.

Q. Did you develop them from
the original records?

A. Yes, I have developed them
frem the original records. 2s I said before, again,
some areas are missing.

Q. I wonder if, Mr. Peryouar,
you would ke kind enough, from your own memory and
from using your records to help your memory if you
wish, to tell us where you haQe hunted as far back
as you can remember, and will you show us, using this
blue pen and making circles anywhere on this map that
you would like, to show us where you hunted.

A. In 1937 -- as I mentioned
previously, I will start in the year 1937.

Q. Is this the whole area you
hunted or just where you shot something?

A. This indicates the areas
where I have been during the period of one year.
This would be during the period of 1937 as we went
half of that year here and then we moved on to this
area the other half of the same year.

Q- ‘Are these camps you have
lived in or are these where you have hunted? I
don't want to lead, but I am trying to suggest that
the area you hunt might be somewhat bigger than this
little circle.

A. Again, during those early

vears in 1937, I was just starting to travel and hunt




> @ om<

—

.] ; 1 ~—1
N
m nmO—=<PImMn QOZ—=—90Tmx

[

ZOnnzZP»ITOYw

R s 0

_mﬁ

O—m>»—H2Z0O »E»—-4-0

'3

|

WO O+ —toW

Peryouar, in ch.
(Golden)

on my own, so I wasn't travelling long distances

those years. But I can indicate to vou on the
map perhaps the area that I have travelled for
hunting and trapping and whatnot.

Q. I have written the date
1937 on the other line, and the blue incicates
Mr. Peryouar. Perhaps he could incicate where he
lived and where he hunted using a little circle for
where he lived, and we will just keep on going that
way.

2. During the summer seasons
it is more difficult to travel longer distances than
it i1s during the winter. There are areas that
we have spent summers we have indicated that are
smaller -- will be indicated by smaller areas that
we used for hunting areas.

During tne following vear of
1932 we have moved on to a dirfferent area not far
from the same location where we were previous to
that year, but during the year 1938 we were able
to travel longer distance, spend more time travelling,
trapping and whatnot, and did much more trapping
during 1938.

In 1938, because of the
travelling distance was greater, living in this area,
it was farther to travel to the Baker Lake area
during 1939 and we have moved rack down to this
area here.

During 1940 we have moved in

this area. 2nd the reason for again movinc into this
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sicde of Baker Lake from the area where we lived in
1939 -~ the reason for moving into this area in 1940
was‘the fact that there was not as much game in
this area, so we moved to this side dvring 1940.

In 1941 we have moved back
some to the south side of the lake because the
trapping was good in that area.

Again, during 1942, we had
moved the camp a little away from the previous camp
but stayed within the general area.

During 1943 we moved back up
to the north side of Baker Lake. We spent half of
the winter there. During the same period of 1943
we had returned back to this area here.

In 1944 -- I will add a plus.
Again in 1944 we moved into the south side of the
lake here, still using the same travelling distance
that we had used prior to that year.

There are so many markings on
there that it is getting almost difficult to tell
which areas are which.

In 1946 we moved up farther

north from Baker Lake.

In 1947 we moved back to the
same area where we had'been before.

In 1948 we had moved into
this area here, but stiil using the same general
.area for hunting and trapping area.

Again, during 1949, we moved

into this area still travelling in the general area
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where it has been marked.

In 1951, again the same area
was_used for travelling.

We have moved here in 1950.

MR. GOLDEN: We may have to
remark those dates with something a little heavier.
I think it is starting to come off.

THE WITNESS: 1952, again
still using the same general area for travelling.

1953, unfortunately, it goes
bevond the map here.

MR. GOLDEN: Q. Does any part
of it show on the map?

A. It doesn't show on the map.

MR. GOLDEN: Perhaps we could
just write it here.

THE WITNESS: 1954 -- during
the year 1954 it wasn't a very good year. It wasn't
a good year for trapping or hunting, so we
never staved in one area.

During 1954 we did a lot of
moving around. We did a lot of travelling in that
area, not staying in one specific area at all.

MR. GOLDEN: Q. Then do not
put a dot down to show.vyour camp. Just put down
where you hunted.

A;. Within the general area
of this marking. It wasn't a good year, as I
mentioned before, so we did a lot of travelling

through certain parts but within that general area.
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1955 I am not able to make any
marking on the map. I was then in the hospital
during the year 1955.

During 1956 I just returned
from the hospital, so I didn't do much travelling.
My wife was staying with her brothers during the
time I was away in the hospital, so when I first
returned in that area, I had not travelled very
much then.

Again during 1957 the same
general area was used for travelling.

Then during the year 1958 --
there is really not any other area I could mark on
the map because that was the year I moved into the
community on Baker Lake and I started to do some
work, so I didn't find that either interesting or
worthwhile making a marking on the map there starting
from the year 1958.

I would just like to make one
other clarification in regard to the year 1958.
There has been mention of people living in this area
during that year. There has been mention during
the year 1958 there were a number of families that
starved in this area. It has been the impression
of a lot of people during perhaps this year 1958 it
was a bad year all around including perhaps the south
side of the lake and ali‘around.

It was a bad year in this

general area during 1958-1959. Because there was no
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game in there, that doesn't mean there was no game
in other areas, because people were still living on
the-land and still depending on game, and people who
were living in this area had plenty of game there
even though it was a bad year for this area right
here.

Q. Even while vou were living
in Baker Lake, we would be interested to know where
you hunted.

A. Yes, whenever travelling
is possible it is possible to get away from the
community and travelling in other areas to get
caribou meat -- as long as one is able to travel.

Q. Were you able to travel
after 19587

A. Yes, I was still able to
travel from the year 1958 on to 1960. 1In fact,
because of the fact that I was still able to travel,
I was able to travel in this area towards Yathkyed
Lake. I ran into families living in this area and
also families 1living up in this general area and
also there were another group of families living
there. This was during the year 1958 to 1960 I was
still able to travel and I was able to run into
families in the different areas.

Q. For what reason did you
travel in those areas?

A. The purpose of those trips
that I was able to take in those areas was during

about that year there was about the great number of
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wolves in this area -- in all of this area. It

appeared there was a large number of wolves, but
they had to find a way to get rid of some of these

wolves, and, as I mentioned earlier, we set out

poisoned baits in these areas in order to get rid of

some of the wolves that may have caused problems
for the trappers for trapping and hunters on their
hunting.

Q. You are indicating the
areas on the west side of the Study Area line and
including the Study Area and to the north, the
Sandy Lake area, and in the south, the Yathkyed Lake
area. I would like you to just tell us if there are
any areas in which you have hunted since you have
been in Baker Lake that you have not already shown us
on the map. Please show us on the map where you
have hunted, if you have hunted anywhere else.

A. Yes, there are many areas
that I could mark on t he map that I have travelled
through on hunting expeditions since I have been in
the community. There are many areas on this map
I could indicate to you. Perhaps if I chose to do
that, you would not be ab%g to recognize this map
because there are many cifferent areas I have
travelled on hunting expeditions since I have moved
into the community -- all within the general area
of the community.

Q. Can you try to show us some
of the larger areas then -- not all of the little ones,

but some of the larger areas you have hunted? Draw
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a circle around them.

A. After having moved into the

community, I know that I myself, along with other

E—=H>»wmmom
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l hunters, there is one particular area that isn't

R
o S E . .
— p far -—— isn't too far from the community where people
' (0]
% who do not have all that time to hunt during the
g | ; winter would travel in this general area to hunt
! G
caribou.
H s
¥ = E Q. Perhaps I could mark that
T _
e I with BP-1 to indicate this is after he has moved
=f C .
g into Baker Lake, and the next BP-2.
f" R A. Again, as I mentioned before,
) E there are so many areas that one is able to travel
e :
'{ s 9 to hunt that one has a choice to travel to hunt.
(6]
o ' i As I mentioned before, there are many areas I could
i g mark on this map.
S
S 0 Q. I have marled that BP-3.
- N .
' C I would like to have you mark as many as you can,
lf- 20 S please. What is that areayou have just marked?
L = -
R A, That area I have just marked
L _
= o is the Kaminuriak Lake. I have hunted in that area,
T
S I too. This area is where I have hunted.
o
& o
. A Q. 2P-5 and BP-6.
oy
= | oF o A. As I mentioned before, there
213 4 N
I
I are many areas and some areas already marked by others.
R
] 1 There are so many areas that if I were to indicate
: (0]
B 5 to you every spot where I have killed a caribou, it
] 2
1 would cover the whole map. Perhaps it would be
r | g confusing to mark every little area or every little
( D
{ - .
g spot on this map.
-
-
&
- -
i
|
[ Sl
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Q. Perhaps you could draw a
circle around the whole area you hunted to show us,
as best YOu can,where it is you go hunting.

MR. HEINTZMAN: I don't think
that is going to be very helpful.

THE COURT: I suspect we are
going to have a circle around the circumference of
the map.

THE WITNESS: It is easier to
show the areas I have travelled on hunting trips
going out and looking for caribou and whatnot. It
would be very simple to mark them starting from
the two areas here going towards here all of the
general areas that I have already marked on the map,
but I would not like to mark other areas that have
been indicated on the map -- other areas Ilhave
been to such as Chesterfield Inlet and Rankin Inlet.
Those were done for other than hunting purposes.

I wouldn't want to ma¥kx them on the map. Perhaps
the areas I have hunted in should be marked generally
as here on the map now.

MR. GOLDEN: Your Lordship,
that might be the best way of doing it.

Q. Would you please go ahead
and mark the one line to show us where you have gone
hunting?

A. This only indicates these
areas where I have travelled to hunt for food. It
does not include the other trips that were taken

other than hunting trips.




3€4.
-
|
¢ Peryouar, in ch.
(Golden)
1 :
E MR. GOLDEN: This will be BP-7.
2 5
i A THE COURT: I think, Mr. Golden,
I
T .
5 I this would be the appropriate time to take a break.
™ M
!
' R
N 5t E ———~ DINNER ADJOURNMENT
- P
| 0
’ R
T
K. I —--— UPON RESUMING
q N
. G MR. GOLDEN: Q. Mr. Per¥youar,
S
r' E I hope you have had a bit of rest. I am going to
0o R
- Y ask you to go back and do some more work on the map.
ﬁ
] C 7 et
! E In the years that you were living on the land and
S
o R after you came to Baker Lake, did you see the camp
: E of other people?
ff' | A. (Indicating)
' 15
L
r ) g Q. Were these the camps of
- A ) '
=) N Inuit who hunted caribou?
S
a g A. Yes, these other people
] N ,
! who had camps out on the land were naturally hunting
C
~im ) caribou, as well. On occasions I have had some help
i 20
R from other people when I arrived at their camp in
& : : - -
) 5 the way of being provided with food.
L
- ¥ Q. Do you know which of those
Y =il
3 A
B w other people eventually came to Baker Lake?
A <
0 0 A. Yes, I know them very well.
25 N
) T Q. What I would like you to do,
. A
;;“ % if you would, is put on the map for me, using the
I'-i.
(0] . .
blue pen, the camps of people who came to live 1in
| % Baker Lake and can you do that by writing the letter
- 5 C to show camp?
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A. The areas I have marked
on the map are the locations people have lived out
on the land and have camped out on the land that I
have run into -- that I have seen in my travels after
I had moved into the community of Baker Lake.

Q. Do you know the names of
the people that lived in those camps?

A. (Indicating)

MR. GOLDEN: I won't number
them, My Lord. I will just inaicate a general area.
He is indicating the east of Yathkyed Lake.

THE WITNESS: The people who
have lived in this area -- I would have to write them
out and give them to you later. This will reguire
me to spell out these names.

MR. HEINTZMAN: Excuse me. Is
the Interpreter going to speak out loud as the
witness is speaking?

THE COURT: The Interpreter is
writing the names, and he proposes to give them to

the Reporter.

MR. GOLDEN: The Interpreter
will read them out as he QOes it .
THE COURT: I don't think reading
them out will be enlightening. Let's get the list.
THE WITNESS: I will just give
yvou the names. What I did is number them from 1 to 14 (s
I will roughly give ycu the names. You may not be

able to spell the names now. I will rewrite them

ic).
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E later.
R
i 1. William Anowtalik; Matthew Nanaow
T ' . : .
I 2. Basil Scottie; John Nukik
M
R 3. Peter Arnaluarg; Irenee Niurtuag
5 E 4 L
p 5 uke Tunguarag
O
R 5. Peter Arsiuaruvic; David Tiktaalaaag
i
é 6. Hugh Aptania
G
7. Basil Tulugtug; James Kingalik
S
E 8. Thomas Qugimut
o R
I 9. Samson Qiuinaagniag; Joanah Nuilaalik
C «
E 10. Peter Inukshuak; Silas Putumeraagtua
S
R 1l1. Moses Nakyugulik; Silas Kadluuk
E
15 J
O
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A
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S Continued on page 367
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Q. Are these the camps of
people you saw after leaving Baker Lake, or before or
both?

A. Yes, these are the people
that I have seen at the camps before and after I have
moved into Baker Lake. In other words, at both times.
Before I moved into the community and after I moved
into the community these are the people that I have
seen in these camps.

Q. Did you see any camps Or
do you remember seeing any camps in the area of the
Kazan River or Kazan Falls or the mouth of the Kazan
Falls on the south side of Baker Lake?

A. Between the years of
1940 up to 1950 there were people living in the Kazan
River area-- starting here and all the way through
the Kazan River area and down towards the shore, down
towards the mouth of the Kazan River.

Q. I hope I am using the
right word when I say "camps". Wére these people
living the same as the other people were living that
you have marked on the map?

A. Yes, these people were
also living in camps along this area here.

=1 Q. Are these people who
came to live in Baker Lake after they moved out of
the camps?

A. Yes, all of these people

had also started to move into the community, and
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basically beginning in the early 1960's when a lot of
people were moving into the community.

Q. Can you please mark on
the map, again using a C, the camps of those people
and give us their names.

A. 21l of these peonle that
I mentioned on the Kazan River area.

Q. VYes.

A. Most of these people
that used to live in that Kazan River area-- a lot
of these people are deceased now, but I will give you
the names just the same.

Q. Are these people who came
to live in Baker Lake? Whether they are now living
or not does not really matter as long as they were
people who came to live in Baker Lake.

A. There are many people
along this area that I have seen that used to live
in these different areas. These marks I have just
marked on here are the camps I have been to and people
I have been in their camps.

Q. We were talking about
Kazan.

“ A. There you see that is
all part of Kazan River there.

Q. Were there any in the
Kazan Falls area?

A. 2again I can't recall
the people living right at the Xazan Falls. There

were people who used to live there. There was one
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camp before the falls and mainly down below the falls.
But.I can't remember people living in the falls area.

Q. That is good enough.
Thank you. Do you recall any camps in the area of
Mallery Lake and Princess Mary Lake?

A. Yes, before moving into
the community of Baker Lake there were a lot of people
that have camped and lived in this area. I have only
marked on the map the people that I have seen--
people that I have seen living in these camps after
I had moved to the community of Baker Lake. There
were a lot of people that used to live in this area
here that I know in different areas which include all
this area here.

Q. Were those people that
you saw before you moved into Baker Lake?

A. Yes, these were the
people that I had seen before moving into Baker Lake.
These people used to live a long distance. Most of
these veople are now not living. Some that are.
living have moved into Baker Lake.

Q. Were these people who
hunted in the area where they lived?

«<A. It was a fact of life
that in those days people who lived in camps, any
camps, could get up in the morning and walk out,
living in a tent, and walk out and outside the tent
and you were able to see caribou close by.

Naturally people hunted

caribou from their camps. It doesn't matter where
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they were living because that is the way life was in
those days. There was no disturbance of any kind.
There was no noise of any type and there were a lot
of game in those days.

Q. Can you please mark for
us-- and I hate to ask you to do it again, but I
wouid like you to mark on the map the areas where you
have seen camps before you moved to Baker Lake.

A. There were many other
people that used to live in this area here that I
heard had camps or lived in this general area here,
but I am not able to exactly pinpoint the spot where
these people lived before.

Q. You are indicating a
general area to the north end of the study area,
between the study area and the edge of the map and not
far from WN1. Can I ask you whethex there are any
camps you can define in the Mallery Lake or Princesse
Marie Lake area?

A. I have indicated two
areas on Mallery and one on the west shore of Princess
Mary: Lake. I also heard people lived in this Pitz
Lake area, but I can't mark the exact areas where
these camps were. I onl} ran into people who lived
here when they were away from their camps. I am not
in the position to give you the exact areas.

Q. Can you identify any
camp sites in the Kaminuriak Lake area? )

A. I have marked on the map

these areas where people had camps that I had seen or
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run into. I had seen their camps in the Kaminuriak
area. One was on the north shore of Kaminuriak, three
towards the south end of Kaminuriak and two others to
the west side of Kaminuriak Lake and one to the north-
east and another one down to the south end of
Kaminuriak Lake. These are the camps that I have seen
in that area. There are other camps I have heard of
in the vicinity of that area, but I am not able to
pinpoint the exact spot.

Q. Can you identify the
names of any of the people who lived in those camps
who later came to live in Baker Lake?

A. The people that had camps
in that general area of the Kaminuriak Lake, most of
these people have moved or are now living or have
moved to Eskimo Point and Rankin Inlet, along the
coast area. Some have moved back. Most of the people
who used to live in that area are no longer now alive
and some of the people that lived in these camps--
move in that area-—- have moved towards the coast.

To my knowledge, there are none that moved into the
community.

Q. As a hunter of caribou,
Mr. Peryouar, can you teX*l us what you 'do when you
are hunting caribou on a snowmobile? Describe how
you hunt caribou on a snowmobile.

A. As a hunter, I can tell
you the fact that to hunt caribou with a skidoo, even
the skidoo may be faster than that dog team, but it

is not as good as using a dog team to hunt caribou if
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you are hunting caribou for food.

A skidoo may be faster than a
dog team, but if you are there to hunt caribou for
food and-you have no other choice but to use the
skidoo now, it may be that the travelling time may be
faster, but it is not as good as using a dog team to
hunt when you are hunting for food.

Q. Can you tell us what you
worry about or what are you careful about when you
hunt caribou on a skidoo? What concerns you the most?

A. I feel it is not safe to
hunt caribou with a skidoo. You can break down miles
away from home and that sort of thing. That does not
happen with dog teams. It is more dangerous now to
hunt with a skidoo when you are a long distance away
from home.

Q. Can you tell us, please,
what happens when caribou hear noise?

A. Yes, in regard to the
kind of reaction the caribou have when they hear a
sound or a noise, I have experienced that on many
occasions. There were times that caribou would run
away-—- would take off because of a sound that they
hear that is not familiar to them. On a number of
occasions that has happened to me because these
animals are very sensitive to any sound or noise that
they are not used to hearing, but they can take off
very quickly.

Q. What does the hunter do

to prevent the caribou from taking off quickly?
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A. Every hunter has his own
way of approaching caribou. But when hunters are
hunting caribou, each hunter-- each indi&idual—— has
his own way of approaching caribou. I have my way of
approaching caribou. There are times that I don't
get caribou perhaps if the caribou run away or have
taken off, and it is simply because that after a
caribou has been running for a certain period of time
that the taste of the meat is different and the taste
is not good to eat and, therefore, I don't like to
see caribou being chased or have been allowed to run
for a long distance.

Q. Does the noise of the
skidoo disturb the caribou-- make them run away?

A. Yes, definitely caribou
will move away or will take off by hearing the sound
of a skidoo. I mentioned earlier that on a number of
occasions I have seen caribou taking off evenAwithout
a sound as big as the sound of a skidoo.

During the winter time the
snow is hard enough. There are times during the
winter that when you are walking on the snow that
maybe the sound is not very much at that time, but
it is enough sound that a caribou can tell there is
someone nearby and they will take off on that.
Naturally they will take off when they hear the sound
of a skidoo.

Q. When you hunt on a

skidoo, what do you do to prevent the caribou from

running away?
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A. Yes, the caribou have a
different way of reacting to sound. They don't all
react the same way to the sound of a skidéo. Like I
mentioned earlier, I like to kill a caribou that has
not been running for a long distance because of the
fact that it has a different taste to it. The best
way I know of approaching a caribou to try to not
allow them to run away or take off for a long
distance is that if you approach them with a skidoo at
a very slow sbeed you are able to get within the
distance of shooting a caribou.

Q. Is there any way that
you hunt differently because of the way the wind is
blowing?

A. Yes, it is very
important to know the direction of the wind when you
are hunting caribou. Most hunters, when hunting, if
they see a caribou in the distance you always try--
you always keep in mind the direction of the wind
because you never approach a caribou from the wind
if you are--

THE INTERPRETER: I am
getting mixed up here.

éYou never approach a caribou
the direction the wind is blowing in an area where
the wind is blowing towards these caribou. You never
approach them from that direction.

BY MR. GOLDEN:

Q. Why is that?
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A. The reason for that is
that tﬁe caribou-- a lot of peoole think that caribou,
when they are feeding-- whatever they ma? happen to
be eating-- find their food by looking but,
unfortunately, that is not so. Caribou find their
food-- what they eat-- by smelling. They don't find
their food by seeing it perhaps like you and I do.

Say, for instance, if you go
into a store and you want to buy something, you get
what you want. You have a choice of getting what you
want. Animals are the same way. They can travel in
any direction. They can travel in different areas and
they will find the kind of food they want to eat.
Unfortunately, they find these foods by smelling them,
not by seeing them.

Many people think caribou
will travel in different areas and find food to eat by
seeing it. Unfortunately, that is not so. Caribou
when moving and travelling will know the taste of
different areas of land-- different hills and
different areas-- as they move on. They will know
the taste of the land itself because they find their
food by smelling it, not by seeing it, as people think

<4

they do.
Q. What happens when a
caribou smells a human?

A. A caribou, when he smells
a human, never stays in one place. Naturally, he will
take off in some direction or other.

Caribou will naturally take
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off when they smell a human, especially one that is
clean-- one that has not hunted caribou or not
dirtied himself on other parts of animals; People who
are clean are easier to smell than others.

Q. What do you mean by
"not clean”"? What smells would the caribou not find :
it easy to smell?

A. There is a big difference
between the way a caribou will smell a human. Take,
for instance, years ago when people were not living
in houses. People were not in a position where today
you walk into a garage or handle a skidoo. People
didn't do that in those years. All they did was live
on caribou and other animals. They were not in a
place like a community of Baker Lake where you walk
into houses and where you handle different machines or
walk into garages. That kind of smell, even to a
caribou, is different.

Today, people who are living
in houses-- ©people today handle skidoos and handle
machines. The smell of a human now today is different
just because of different things people now handle
today different than they did years ago.

4Q. When you kill caribou
when you are hunting, do you cut them and skin them
or do other things to them after they are killed?

A. Yes, as soon as one kills
a caribou, one skins that caribou, and especially
during the summer, as soon as the caribou is killed,

that caribou is skinned right away.
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There are other people that |
during the winter time, when it is cold in the winter,
who prefer to have caribou that have not been skinned

but been left to freeze. That is the kind of food

some are used to eat. |
|
Othexrs will skin their caribo&
as soon as the caribou has been killed, especially
during the summer.
Q. What does that do to the

smell of the hunter? Does the hunter then smell

differently after he has handled the caribou--

skinned the caribou?

A. Yes, certainly a person |
who has killed a caribou, skinned a caribou-- handled!
a caribou by skinning and what not-- even another
person will have a smell of a caribou, especially
after a person has carried a caribou to a distance
away from where he originally started off hunting.
Even one can tell the person handling a caribou just
by the smell of that person because a person who has
handled a caribou will naturally have a different
smell.

Q. Have the caribou in this
area changed their routés, the migration routes,
since you have come to Baker Lake?

A. Yes, there has been a
great change in the migration of the caribou since
I have moved into the community. Even before I moved
into the community there were changes already, and

much more so after having lived in the community of
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Baker Lake.

For the first while after I
moved into Baker Lake there were still some caribou
coming in close, perhaps as close to the other side of
the lake here. Now it is at the point where you are
wondering if there are going to be any caribou on the
other side of the lake itself.

Q. When the caribou are
migrating in spring and fall, are they in big herds?

A. -During the spring season
when the caribou are moving, they normally move in
large groups. Prior to that time, before they start
moving, they are usually scattered in different areas,
and then once they start moving they normally move in
large groups.

Q. When they are moving in
large groups are they more easily frightened or is it
harder to frighten them?

A, When caribou are
travelling or moving in large groups they don't
frighten away as easily as they do when they are zn
small groups.

It used to be a custom of
the people-- the older‘people in those earlier years
-- that when caribou are moving in large groups it
was a custom of the people that it did not matter
where they lived, what kind of people they were, what
groups of people they were, it was the custom of all
Inuit people that when caribou are moving in large

groups that you leave the first group alone. You
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leave the first part of the caribou herd alone. You
never start killing them as they start coming; you let
the first part of the large herd go by and if you are
going to be killing caribou then you get perhaps near
the last half of the caribou herd that are moving by.
That was the best-- if you want to call it-- a
regulation the people had.

All the Inuit people knew that
is the way you do when you are going to be hunting or
killing part of a large caribou herd. All of the
people-- all of the Inuit knew that. Not only one
group of Inuit, but all the Inuit. It didn't matter
where they were. Part of this is custom. You were
taught never to kill the first part of the caribou
herd coming by you, but you let the first part of them
go and if you were going to be getting or needed food,
you killed the last part of them or within that area.

Q. What about the time of
year-- 1is there any time of year when the caribou
are harder to frighten or when they don't frighten so
easily?

A. Talking about caribou
during the summer season, I am not going to say that
all through the summer s®tasons they are harder to
frighten away than they are other times of the year.
There are summers-- perhaps it is a hot summer--
there are different summers every year and some
summers are warmer than other years, but if it is a

very warm summer, naturally, there are always

mosquitoes up here. If one year it is a warm year,
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a very hot summer, maybe for a short period of time--

perhaps for a few days at a time-- caribou may not be
as hard to frighten as they normally would be, but

any time, it be summer or any other time of the year,

as soon as the weather cools off, they are easier to

frighten away as other times of the year.

Q. Is there any reason for

this that you know of?

A. Yes, it is very simple
to tell why caribou may react as they do: because,
as I mentioned before, it may be because of a hot
summer, some years the feeding grounds are not as good
as other times. When caribous are not feeding well
or it is too hot a season, they are not easy to
frighten away and that is because the animal is hungry
and it doesn't really care which direction it takes
when it is walking. And, for instance, I heard
someone told a story about seeing a caribou walking
very close by that wasn't afraid of anyone and didn't
seem to be frightened away by anything. It is very
simple to tell by the fact that particular caribou is
very hungry or it was a bad summer, perhaps, that
year and the caribou didn't have a very good feeding
ground and perhaps there were too many mosguitoes
-that summer and it djdn't really care which direction
it walked.
Q. I would like to ask you
about a herd of caribou that we have heard about

that have wintered to the north of Baker Lake and in

the area-- if I am correct-- of the northeast sector
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of Baker Lake. Do you know about this herd of
caribou?

A. Yes, this caribou herd--
this large number of caribou that were on the north
side of Baker Lake~- those particular caribou-- that
particular caribou herd was a part of the caribou herd
that normally is part of the caribou herd from
Northern Manitoba that normally wintered or normally
are in that area in the part of Northern Manitoba but,
unfortunately, these caribou from that area-- from
the northern part of Manitoba-- at one time have
moved in one big group in this area and then split up
and part of the caribou herd has moved on from this
side towards the coast and on two occasions the same
caribou in this one group again have moved in this
area here and on two occasions, but normally these
caribou now have been moving up and down, back and
forth, in this area.

Q. When you are saying they
are moving up and down and back and forth in this
area, you are indicating the coastal area. You said
then, unfortunately, they moved twice. You are
indicating a motion from east to west and back to the
east again.

=3 A. On the north side of the
lake.

Q. On the north side of
Baker Lake. Mr. Peryouar, how do you know that these

are the same caribou as in the Kaminuriak herd?

A, That particular gquestion--=+
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it would be a very simple guestion. It would be
simple to explain that to Inuit because the Inuit is
abXe to tell where a caribou has been-- from what
area a caribou is from. But it is very difficult to
try to explain this to a white person. But Inuit are
able to tell where a caribou is from-- from what
certain area they are from just by looking at a
caribou because Inuit will have a use for the whole
of a caribou-- the skin, the meat and the bones and
all. Naturally, caribou from different areas are in
different sizes. Their bodies are in different sizes
and it is simple to tell which caribou herd these
different caribou are from.

It is not just a story why
and how people know these caribou-- why and how they
use different parts of caribou. It is not just a
story. If we are still able to kill caribou today,
we are still able to use them the way we used them
before. We are still able to cook certain parts of
caribou for certain days or for certain meals. These
are not just stories. These are the things we
continue to do today.

Just today, when I went home

for lunch, I had caribou. Now, again, that is not

. jJust a story becauseﬂthat is what I had for lunch

today. Naturally, these are not just stories. These
are still the things w& continue today.

Q. Is there any difference
in the taste of the bone marrow of the caribou from

one herd or the other?
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A. Yes, there is naturally {.
a difference in the caribou in different caribou herds.
Yoﬁ take one caribou, and it has a different taste in
a different area. Different caribou parts taste
different. Naturally, they are different in the groups
or different groups of caribou-- different herds or
different groups of caribou.

Q. I would like to ask you
whether or not in any time in your hunting you have
had any difficulty because of aircraft, helicopters
or drills or any of the things that happen around
mining exploration?

A. First of all, I normally
don't hunt where mining exploration is going on
because I am smart enough to know there is nothing
in that area so why bother to hunt in that area when
there is nothing there. WNormally I don't hunt in
areas where there are mining activities or mining
exploration is going on. On occasion I can recall in
other areas where I have hunted that there were some
disturbances done by helicopters.

Q. Can you tell us about it?
Describe what happened.

A. This happened at Kaminak

‘Lake some time ago. “There were a number of caribou
there at that time. On one particular day I was
hunting caribou. I was there to kill for food.

After having to choose the caribou I wanted I went
to approach it. I believe that certain caribou didn't

see that helicopter, but there was a sound from it that
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frightened that caribou away from the area. 1I was just

approaching it. Just by hearing the helicopter and
not- seeing it, it frightened.

Q. Has the same kind of
thing happened to you just once or more than once?

A. This was one varticular
incident that happened on one of my hunting trips and,
again, as I mentioned earlier, I normally do not go to
hunt where there are mining activities going on. As I
said before, I know well enough that there is nothing
in those areas. But that was one particular incident
that happened.

Q. Have you ever been
employed to help tag caribou?

A. Yes, I have been involved
in both kinds of caribou tagging-- one where you tag
caribou by getting to them with a canoe and there is
another method we use by going after them on foot.

Q. And you counted caribou
from an airplane?

A, I can only recall on one
occasion where I was on an aircraft where the counting
was done from an aircraft, but I don't recall actually
being involved with one.

3 Q. There was something I

A

would like to do on the map. Before I do that, may
I ask you how often you eat caribou?

A. Yes, I prefer to be able
to eat caribou meat all the time when possible.

Q. Are you able to hunt and
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kill as many caribou as you would like to now?

A. Now I am not able to kill
as ﬁuch caribou as I have need of.

Q. Why not?

A. Again, as I have already
mentioned before, the reason now that I do not get
enough caribou as I used to before, as I previously
mentioned today, one was able to go out from the tent
and see caribou close by and today one hardly knows
which direction to go today because one has to travel
now to such a long distance it is almost impossible
to even know which way you will be able to travel to
go hunt caribou from here because now you have to
travel such a long distance.

Q. How many caribou did you
kill in the last year? Do you know?

A. Could you say what year—-
seventy-eight? -- seventy-nine? There has been some
confusion on that particular guestion.

Q. I am thinking about the
period going back one year, say, to the last July 1lst.

A. From last July up to now.

Q. Yes.

A. From July of last year
‘up to now I have onlysgot sixteen caribou. I cannot
forget the number because I know that is not enough
caribou-- as many carfbou as I would have wanted to
get. It is much less than the number that I would
have wanted to get.

Q. Do you remember how much
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you got the year before that?

A. Again, a year before that
I can recall that I didn't have a good season. I was
not able to get out that often. I can recall I got
five and, of course, that year we had enough caribou |
meat at home because also my son was getting some
caribou meat, along with my brother-in-law. But, I
can recall I only got five the year before that.

Q. Do you remember the last
year you got enough caribou?

A. If I can recall correctly,
I believe that the last time I got enough caribou--
enough to last our family for a year-- I can't recall
the exact year, but I believe it was during the year -

1965 to '66. Nineteen sixty-five or '66 was the last

time I got enough caribou for my family's use for all

year.

Q. I am going to ask you to
come to the map again. On Exhibit P-6 I would like
to ask you, first of all, if you know, from your own
knowledge, about the crossing places where the caribou
cross water in this area. First of all, did you help
the Hunters and Trappers Association to find the
crossings for the government?

~u A. Yes, I helped the
Hunters and Trappers Association to mark those
crossings on the map. "1 just recall recently that
there are a number of crossings that I have forgotten
to mark on the other map.

Q. Would you mind using
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this blue marking pen to mark the crossings on the
map by drawing a line on the crossing so we can see
which crossings you know about?

A. This map is very
difficult to read. The printing is so small.

Q. The map is very faint
and has very fine lines on it.

A, I find it very difficult
to tell the difference in the distances because this
map is so difficult to tell which areas are which, but
I have marked it on the map and, hopefully, they are
in the right area. Some of them may be off a little,
but those are the areas that I have marked on this
map.

Again, there are some areas
that have already been marked there. If you want me
to, I could re-mark them. But, again, I don't mark
areas I know of that have been marked on the map.

Q. We have not had to deal
with that area yet. If you agree with the crossings
already marked, you need not mark it again.

A. Those areas that have
already been marked are correct areas. Just some other
areas that either were not known or have been
forgotten that I recemtly marked on there. Those were
the only areas that were not marked on the map. They
were either forgotten 6} were areas that were not
known that I know of.

Q. The previous witness

marked in red. Eave you seen this map before?
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A. I can't recall having
seen this map before. I can recall seeing some maps
similar to this. |

Q. May I-- Jjust to make
sure the witness understands the symbols-- the red
marks are marked by a different witness. The dotted
areas with the lines next to them that are black or
dark grey are already on the map and shown as crossing
areas. I want you to clearly understand which ones
you are agreeing with and which ones you are not.

A. Yes, I can recognize all
the areas that have been already previously marked
either in red or in the original marking of this map.

I can recognize these areas
as caribou crossings that I know of.

Q. Are there any marks there
that you do not agree with?

A. I believe that all these
marks that were originally marked on this map and
they are marked and the marks that were made
previously-- I believe those are all correct areas.

Some areas, if you look
closely, it may seem that it is a fairly long

<
distance for a caribou to cross, but I know for a
fact that these areas are correct areas where these
caribou have crossed or have been known to cross.

MR. GOLDEN: Thank you very
much, Mr. Peryouar.

THE COURT: It is five

o'clock. I proovose to adjourn, since we are going to
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start again at seven o'clock, which is reasonably
close.

——= DINNER ADJOURNMENT

=== Upon resuming-at "7:00 ».m.

—-=- BARNABUS PERYOQUAR, rzcalled

BY MR. GOLDEN:
Q. Mr. Peryouar, we were

asking you about caribou and what they were sensitive

to and when. I forgot to ask you about one area.
When caribou are near the water-- near a crossing or
near a lake or river-- <can you tell me if they are

any different than they are at other times?

A. Yes, caribou have a
different way of acting when they are in different
areas. Say a caribou herd was intending to cross a
certain part of a river. They may seem like they
want to cross in a certain area or in a certain body
of water. They wander along the shore of a river and
you can always tell that the group of caribou are
going to be crossing that certain area within a short
period of time by just the way they react. They do
not spend much time either just resting or eating.
They spend a lot of their time, if they are going to
cross a body of water, looking and watching out to see
what is on the other "side. This is an indication of
a group of caribou are going to be crossing either in
that particular area wﬂére they happen to be now or
somewhere near that area.

Q. At a time when they are

near water, are they more or less easily frightened?
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g I hope I put it clearly enough to translate.
E A. When caribou are looking
? forva certain area where they want to cross, they are
M more easily frightened than they normally are.
5 E MR. GOLDEN: Thank you,
g Mr. Peryouar. I have no further questions. Your
? witness.
N
& ——— CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. HEINTZM&N
E Q. Mr. Peryouar, did your
0 Y father come from the Kazan River area?
g- A. Yes, my father was one
R of the group of veople who were called Qaernermiut.
B Q. And your grandfather?
5 1 A. My grandfather, who was
3 the father of ny father not in a way that he was his
S father but he was a man that he grew up with when he
S was just a child, lived in the area. He was one of
: the people called Qaernermiut.
, S Q. As I understand it, the
? R Qaernermiut were the peoole who traditionally lived
é' in the Kazan River area or basin, is that correct?
¥ A. Yes, that 1is correct,
% because people chose to live along the river-- along
o the Kazan River area where it was easier to hunt.
» E ~ Q. Had your father been
? adopted by your grandfather?
? " A Yes, my father was
% originally adooted by my grandfather. His father
. 6 died when his father was a child and therefore was
3
'Hdé adopted by my father's-- my original grandfather's
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brother.

Q. In the old days, when
your father was living in the Kazan River area, how
many people would have been living in his particular
camp?

A. I am not able to tell you
the number of people that used to live in those camps
because these are the things that happened long before
I was born and therefore I would not have that
information. But, perhaps, if you are looking for
information that had anything to do with caribou or
game, that information I am able to provide you with.

Q. Right now I want to
discuss people. When you were living with your
father, how many people would be living in your camp?

A. People in those days--
when they were living in camps-- they were not living
in such a large group in one particular area. In some
cases there were people who were living-- families
were living in one area. There may be another group
of families, even though if they were not living
right with another family, would be maybe living five
or ten miles away-- possibly living in those areas
they chose to live because it was easier for them in
-order to hunt what game they wanted to hunt so,
therefore, people were not living in a large group in
one camp. )

Q. Could you tell me how

many people would have been living in your camp when

you were growing up?
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A. I can recall that when I
was growing up within our immediate family there were
two of my brothers, including myself, along with our
parents, of course, and then my father got to the
point where he was not able to on his own. During the
month of August-- say from Aucust 20 to the month of
September-- even our immediate family would move away
into different areas in order to prepare themselves for|
the coming winter. They would not move away or
separate into a long distance. But, they would then
during that time of the year. They would go into
different directions to prepare their caribou for the
coming winter.

In one particular area there
would be perhaps myself, two of my brothers, along
with my parents.

Q. What you are saying is
that in one particular area there might be a number of
camps, is that correct?

A. They would be-- within
our immediate family there would be, say, three tents.
Then, as I mentioned earlier, during a certain time
of the year-- during the early fall, we would split
up and move into different areas for a short period
of time in order to prepare for the winter.

Q. So that during months
of the year you would have, say, three tents or three
igloos together and then some parts of the year you
would split up into smaller groups.

A. Yes, there would be
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perhaps three tents within our immediate family, if
you were living in one area. In the winter it would
be different. Some years, if the snow is good for
building snow houses, for example, there may be in one
area one large igloo perhaps almost the size of this
area of this building here-- providing the snow is
good for building igloos. It would be one large

igloo that is able to accompany a whole family.

Q. Would the people who
live in that family include your father, mother, you
and your brothers and sisters and other relations, or
just your immediate family?

A. Just large igloos that
I have mentioned to you are large enough that they are
able to accommodate my parents, two of my brothers
and all their families. They are made in the same
way, so that they are able to accommodate all of
their families in one large igloo.

Q. When you say your
brothers, did your brothers have their wives and
children in the camp or igloo, as well?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. Then I think you said at

certain times of the year, for hunting, your brothers

.would go off in certgin directions and your father

would go off in another direction, is that correct?
" A, Yes, as I mentioned

before, during the month of August-- say from

August 20 towards the end of September-- we would

go into different areas. We would separate into
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different groups in order to prepare ourselves to allow |
everyone is given a chance to be able to get caribou
to érepare themselves for the winter and, of course,
during the winter time it was much easier to travel byv

dog team. It didn't matter how far apart families

were or whether they stay in one camp or were separated
from their other families. During the winter it was !
easier to get around and to travel. ’

Q. In the summer, when you
were hunting in a camp, I assume, or I take it that
you could only hunt within a very small area because
of the weight of the caribou to be carried back to
camp, is that correct?

A. Our grandparents-- people;
who were born during those years-- have always made
it a custom that during the summer seasons, when it
may sound like it is difficult or more hard to travel
and hunt caribou during the summer seasons, but it was
the custom of our grandparents, people born in those
years, that they know what areas are going to have
caribou during those summer seasons and, theréfore,
there was no need for them to travel to find caribou
because they were in the area that the caribou would
come through and, therefore, they didn't have to
travel any long distance to hunt caribou when they
were living off the land during the summer seasons.

Q. Can you recall from when

would be in the Kazan River area where the

Harvagtormiut were living?
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A. People in the Kazan River
area called Harvagtormiut-- there were a lot of these
people in the Kazan River. They were not situated
in one particular area but scattered along the Kazan
River area. I don't think it would make much sense
if I give you a name of every person. I don't think
that is going to be very useful. But I know they
were a group of people that live along that area.

They were situated in different locations.

Q. Excuse me. I am trying
to get an idea how many people we are talking about.
That is why I am asking you how many camps there would
have been.

A. People who had camps
all along the Kazan River area, as I mentioned earliex,
were situated in different locations along the river.
If perhaps I were to try to give you an approximate
number of camps that were situated I may not have
the correct numbers. I would say that individuals
camped along the river where peoplellive—— those
people were called Harvagtormiut-- I would say
within the number of twenty groups of people that
were situated along the Kazan River area.

Q. I want to just talk
about your particula;~camp for a moment. How did
you decide or who decided among the people in your
camp as to whether you should go in one direction or
in another direction?

A. Within our immediate

family, of course, there were many of us in our
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family. ©Naturally, it was up to the older people
within our families such as fathers or grandfathers,
people who knew and who have the experience of having
been in other areas-- they were the ones that
decided which direction or which location we should
move to.

Q. Did you make your own
decisions in your own camp or did people from other
camps tell you what to do?

A, It was up to the people
within the camp to make decisions and to decide where
one must go-- where one should be located. ©No one
people in one particular camp had to be told from a
different camp of people from another camp. Even
then the other people in different areas that were
living in the nearby camps or farther away-~ even
other people in different areas have the same similar
-- well, if you want to call it regulations or
certain way of living that they normally go by on a
daily basis. It is all the same among the Inuit
people and it did not matter whether you were living
in one particular area or living in a different area,
people will do the same thing as you would do in one
particular camp even if you were making decisions as
-to which direction to, go or what location to move to.

Q. What would happen if
two groups of people decided to camp or wanted to
camp im the same place?

A. There was nothing wrong

with two groups of people having to live in one
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particular area or one camp. As I mentioned earlier,
people who were living in those days had nothing

more than to live with the animals arouna them. They
know which direction these animals were moving and |
to all people-- it does not matter whether thev were |
1iving in other camps or not-- this was a way ol
life and therefore one was not needed or were not 4
able to live with a group from another area.

Q. What I understand from
what you are saying is that = the group from
Harvagtormiut came into your area to hunt, and you
could go to their area and that was fine.

A. Yes. Naturally, people

from other areas-- such people as you mentioned--

that may have come from a different area would come

to our camp and naturally they were made welcome to
hunt and to do what they are there to do. Even if
these veople-- even if you have never seen these
people before, you recognize them. They are people
like yourself. They are Inuit people and they do
what you do-- they hunt. They know how to go about
hunting and therefore they were made welcome. Now

I find it very difficult perhaps to try and make the
white people understand. There are, I can assure
you, tons of pavers where people write regulations
or whatever. There are tons of paper where stories
and regulations are drawn up. I can tell you one
thing-- <that there are numerous land markings
within the land itself. Even if it may not look to

a lot of people-- a small stone put onto another




T ==

=

B o) & = o=

—_—

.—-._-]

!

5

25

\

IO

C——Hpwmom<

AR s O ZOunZP IO - m- o8 VmO—~<Imun QOZ—~—X0wmx

O—~m"»—H2Z0 >E»~4-H0

WO N0 1 ~NWn

Peryouar, cr. ex.
(Heintzman)

stone may not have any meaning to you or another
person, but to an Inuit person who may have come to a
different direction in travel can read that. There
is a certain message within that rock that has been
put on perhaps another rock. It has a message. It
tells a person what it means.

I find that very difficult
to try and explain but there are messages where people
can read these messages. If you travel along through
the land you will find these landmarks and other
markings in the land that have been put up by Inuit
people and there are messages-- different meanings,
different messages, within these certain landmarks.

Q. Can you tell me whether
the travelling that you did and you described for us
was similar to what other people from the Kazan Rimer
area would have done or is your travelling unusual?

A. Those travels-- I have
indicated the areas that I have travelled. It may
sound perhaps to a lot of pbeooble that I seem to have
done a lot of travelling. Again, that is not even
half the time of other people that were there before
me that used to travel. There were people that long
before I was around that used to travel from the
Hudson Bay coast up to the Arctic Ocean.

I may have done some
travelling, but not as much as the other people there
that were there before me.

Q. Was the amount of

travelling you did a common thing for the people
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who came from the Kazan River area?

A. That was the usual way
for the Inuit people to travel to different areas-- ;
travel perhaps to different locations and travel long
distances. It was also in those days. Travelling
was something that people enjoyed doing. It was also
nice to travel into areas that you have not been to
before. This was part of life and, therefore, it was
fun. People enjoyed travelling. It was also
necessary to hear other people saying they have been
in certain areas. It was normal for people to travel

in different areas and different locations.

Q. From the examination of
you of a couple of weeks ago I gathered one of the '
reasons you travelled is that you were hunting for
fox and were trapping. Am I correct on that?

A. Yes, in my case a lot of
the travelling was for the purpose of trapping
because once I start travelling that was the period
of time that a lot of our people had started
trapping as well, whereas before,people, even though
they may not have done trapping, had reason to travel
as well. They had other reasons for their travel.

In my case a lot of the travel I did has had to do

‘with trapping. 4

Q. Where did you sell your
furs? '

A. From the time that I
remember when people were selling their fur-- so far

as I can remember people were bringing their fur into
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the community of Baker Lake to sell to trade their fur.

Q. Is that where the Baker
Lake is now or where it was then?

A. I can recall wnhen the
present location where we are now was used as the
trading post.

Q. And what was it called
then to the Inuit back in those days?

A. Come again?

Q. What was this place
called? This settlement? This trading post called?

A. It was Kamanigtwa.

Q. What does that mean in
English?

THE INTERPRETER: I am only
interpreter. You get the meaning from him.

The meaning of Baker Lake--
I will call it Baker Lake. Kamanigtwa. It is a lake
where rivers flow into.

BY MR. HEINTZMAN:

Q. I want to talk about
other groups. Would I be correct that the people
living down in this area here would be the
Haunegtormiut in the old days?

"~ A. Yes, people who were
living close to the coast in this area were called
Haunegtormiut. But, uﬁfortunately, I do not know the
exact river that is called Haunegtorma.

Q. They are named after a

river, are they?
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A. The name Haunegtormiut

originally comes from a river called Haunegtorma,
meaning it was a good river for hunting-- people had
good hunting there. The caribou was good in there.
There is a river in there. The area Haunegtorma.
That is why the people were called Haunegtormiut,
named after that area that I cannot pinpoint on the
map.

MR. HEINTZMAN: I have been
indicating the area from Baker Lake down towards the
coast.

BY MR. HEINTZMAN:

Q. I understand that in the
old days there was another Hudson Bay post down here
at Padlei, is that correct?

A. - Yes, there was the
Hudson Bay post there.

Q. And the people who lived
around the Yathkyed Lake area trade down to that post?

A. I can .recall people who
were living in the Yathkyed Lake area. Some would
trade to the Padlei area and some, when they had good
dog teams, would go from this area all the way to
Eskimo Point to trade.

ien Q. Did these people have a
name they were called by the other Inuit?
" A. We called them people
from the Padlermiut area.

Q. I heard another name

used called the Ahearmiut.
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A. My understanding is opeople
living within the area of Hanik Lake, not shown on
this map, were people called Ahearmiut.

Q. People living on the
coast-—~ this area of Whale Cove-- and their families,
were they called the Tareumiut?

A. That's correct.

Q. And have some of the peoplg
from these areas or groups come up to live in Baker
Lake?

A. Yes, there are people now
living in Baker Lake from those areas.

Q. I understand there are
no people living in and around Padlei as they used to
live, is that correct?

A. I am not able to answer
that because I don't go into that. I don't travel
into that area.

Q. Have you ever travelled
down to Padlei?

A. I don't recall. I
wouldn't say that I have been in the Padlei area.

I've been flying within that distance-- within the
Hanik Lake area on aircraft, but not travelling on a
.journey on my own.

Q. I mean on the ground--
have you been down to Hanik or Padlei area on the
ground?

A. As I say, I have

indicated on this map where I have travelled by land
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by dog team as far as the Yathkyed Lake area, but I
have not travelled beyond that on land but I have,
again, at the same time, been in other areas by air
but not by land.

Q. The area down at the
south of the map here-- this area here-- how many
times have you been down in this area? You marked
one camp or one area here. I think that is P4. How
many times have you been in that P4 area?

A. I have only been in that
particular area here two months at a time perhaps
inside a few years.

Q. What years were they?

A. It would be somewhere
within 1975.

Q. And where you have
marked letter C on the map, I understand it is where
you have come across people iiving in a camp there,
is that correct?

A. Yes, these are the areas
that are marked with the letter C that were the
people that had their camps that I had seen in my
travels. Those people might be there for a while and
then they would move on to some other place.

e As I mentioned previously,
people were never in one area for a long period of
time at any time and, again, it may seem that I have
been in a lot of places on this map which are
indicated but, if you were to ask other people in the

community, you would be surprised to know how often
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and in what areas people have been in.

Q. Can you tell me when was
the last time that you saw those camps in the southern
area of that map?

A. The last time that I was
in this area was during the year 1961, and I have not
been back in that area after the year 1961.

Q. And how about the camps
in the other areas that you marked? When was the last
time you saw people living in those camps?

A. 2All these areas that are
marked with the letter C on this map-- all these
areas would have, as I mentioned earlier, during the
year 1960-61 most I have not been back in this area
and, of course, this was during the year when the
school was open in the community, so a lot of people
have moved in the settlement.

Q. When you were living on
the land did you see people without enough to eat?

A. I can recall-- I cannot
recall any particular year when other people in
different areas or different camps were having hard
times or having a bad year. As I mentioned earlier,

I can only recall one particular year when it was

.very bad in certain areas but not all of this

particular area and, again, as I mentioned earlier,
in fact my travel in tHese other camps-- I have
received some help from other people who were living
in these other camops which indicates to me that these

people were well off. There was good game with these
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people so they were not having any hardships.

| Q. In one particular year,
in this area, I think you said there was no caribou,
is that correct?

A. That one particular vyear,
which was 1958, when there was a lot of people
starving in this area it seems to me reflects that
was the worst year at any time. I can't recall any
similar years either before that or after that.

Q. I take it you moved
around as much as possible to be where the caribou
were?

A. VYes, as I have indicated
on the map, I do not know what more I can tell you-—-
but, as I have illustrated on the map, that that is
that.

Q. Can we look at the other
side? On this side, Mr. Peryouar, we have an
indication of some water crossings where the caribou
have crossed the water. My guestion to you is do
they cross in these areas every year or cdo we have
here an indication that caribou have crossed some
particular years at these locations?

A. During the period of time
when people were living-- as I mentioned-- to hunt
and nothing more, these crossings were used on a
yearly basis. In other words, every year.

Q. Let's take it from 1958.
Can you tell me if the crossings west of Shultz Lake

have been used very much since 1958?
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A. Yes, definitely this
area has been used for crossings even after 1958.

Q. I am talking about areas

just to the west of Shultz Lake.

A. Yes, these crossings were |

still used even after the year 1958.

Q. How many years after the
year 1958 were they used?

A. These particular
crossings we are talking about, as I mentioned
before, were still used after the year 1958.
Obviously, I would say they were still being used
up to the year 1960. There was this big change
during the early sixties that these crossings were no
longer used. The Canadian Wildlife Service people
were coming into these areas. That is the time when
some of these crossings were no longer used.

Q. Would I be correct in
those crossings have not been used much since the
early 1960's?

A. Again, if the Inuit
people were given the chance to see these animals or
return to this area, it would be the same again as
before. These animals would be back in these areas--
these crossing areas. These caribou would cross just
like they used to before. If the people were given
a chance to allow these animals to cross once again,
they would definitely return in the same areas.

Q. Do I understand from that

that these crossings have not been used since the

i
|
|
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early sixties very much by the caribou?

A. That's correct. These
crossings were not used that much during-- starting
during the early sixties and, of course, even before
that happened people knew this was going to happen
once the wildlife people were in there either tagging
caribou or counting caribou. People knew this was
all going to happen at a time before it happened.
Unfortunately, the people that were in there felt
that they were doing their job or felt they were doing
something they had to do, but even at that time the
Inuit people knew that this was going to happen long

before it happened--- long before the caribou were

stopped-- 1long before they stopped using the crossings.

MR. HEINTZMAN: Thank you
very much.

THE COURT: I think we had
better take a five minute break here.
-=-= RECESS
—-—— UPON RESUMING"

MR. HEINTZMAN: Some people
asked me which water crossing I was discussing with the
witness. It was the water crossing between Shultz

and Aberdeen-- just for the record.

—-= CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. COSMAN

Q. Mr. Peryouar, you
mentioned, I believe, that you were ill in the
sanatorium in 1955 aﬁd you did not go hunting that
year.

A. That's correct.
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Q. And in 1956 you were
recovefing from your illness and you were not doing
much hunting then either.

A. That's correct.

Q. Since 1958 I understand |

you have lived in the Baker Lake settlement.

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. And for thirteen years--
from 1962 to 1975-—- I understand you worked for the
wildlife service, is that right?

A. That's correct.

Q. And it is true, is: it not,
that in the thirteen years that you worked for the
wildlife service that you did not do very much hunting?

A. Yes, I didn't do that
much hunting during those thirteen years, although I
was able to hunt when I was able to get caribou.

Q. Up until 1958, until the
time you moved into Baker Lake settlement, you moved
around the Baker Lake area, as you have indicated on
Exhibit P-2, almost on a seasonal basis, is that right?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. And in the years that
you hunted from 1938 to 1958, do I take it that you
lived in small camps with only a few families during
that period?

A. Yes, we were not a large
group during that pefiod of time but, of course, there
were other groups in other areas.

Q. With respect to those
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other groups, is it fair to say that there was a wide
distance between the various groups of the various
people that you have indicated on the map, P-2?

A. Yes, people were living
in long-- they were in long distances apart from one
another and, of course, at the same time there were
other people that were living closely.

Q. And when did you start
to travel to Baker Lake to sell your furs and to
purchase bullets or other supplies?

A. The furs that were sold
at the trading post were mainly the fur from the
caribou skins that were sold during the last part of
October and, of course, the fur that was sold-- fur
from the fox-- were sold during a period any time
from November on. Any time we people felt the need to
go and trade this fur, we would travel into the
community.

Q. In what year did you
first start coming into the trading post to sell your
furs?

A. As I have indicated
previously today, once again, I mention that I didn't
want to go beyond the year 1937. Even though I was
learning to hunt-- to get around-- I was not on my
own. Starting from the period from 1937 on, I was on
my own then and that is an indication that I was able
to come in on my own and travel on my own.

Q. Did you do that once or

twice a year every year in 1937 up to 1958?
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A. I am not able to give you
the ekact number of times people were coming in to
trade their fur because we were not-- we were not in
a position where we make plans to come at a certain
time or certain months of the year.

People would travel and trade
their fur whenever they need. We are rnot like you
white people who need the big, long plan to go certain
places. When the need arises, we go into the
community to trade fur. I am not in a position to
tell you how many times this would happen.

Q. I understand that. Are
you telling me that you don't know if you came in at
least once a year?

A, I am saying that we
would trade-- come into the community to trade fur
a number of times in the year. I am not saying once
a year. Perhaps it is a different thing for people
living in farther areas-- Garry Lake area. These
people had more distance to travel and, therefore,
they were not coming in as often as we* were coming

into the community. With those coming into the
Kazan River area we were able to come into the
community more often than other people who were
living in long distance away from the community.

Q. In 1937 what was here
in Baker Lake? There was a trading post?

A. In the year 1937 there
was a very small trading post here in Baker Lake.

It was something that looked more like a warehouse
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than a trading post. The main items they had in that
trading post were hard tack and flour because you
couldn't put anything in there that was ndt meant to
freeze. It was so cold that the trader himself had to
be dressed up in caribou clothing. That is how cold
it was. The trading post itself, at that time, looked
no more than a little warehouse.

Q. Was there a mission here
at that time?

A. During that time there
was the Roman Catholic mission and the Anglican mission
as well.

Q. Were there any Inuit
people living here?

A. During those years the
only people that were living in the community, the
existing community now, were the persons that were
working for the Hudson Bay preparing fox skins and
the persons who worked with the missions-- one person
with the Anglican mission and the other with the
Roman Catholic mission. They were the only people
living in the community.

For the rest of us there was
no need to live in the community. We lived out on
the land simply because we were in areas where it was
easier to hunt caribou, so there were no other people

living in this community other than those people who
were working for the people-- the existing agencies
at that time.

Q. Do you know the year in
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which Fhe majority of people came to the community--
the Baker Lake community?

A. Yes, I can recall the
particular year when the majority of the people moved
to the community. There was a hard time. It was a
bad year for a lot of people. This happened when
the school first opened in the community. It was
very difficult for a lot of people who wanted to live
out on the land but their children were forced to go
to school in the community and therefore a lot of
the parents had no choice but to move into the
community so they can be with their children who were
asked to go to school.

This was a very difficult
yvear for a lot of these families. Even for the
families that did manage to stay out on the land,
their children were picked up and brought into the
community to go to school. That was even more
difficult for those families who continued to live
out on the land when their children were brought
into the community to go to school.

Q. Was that in 1957 and
19582

A. The majority of people
moved to the community during 1960.

Q. When did people start
moving into the community? Do you know that?

A. Again, as I mentioned
before, when the school opened in 1960, that is the

year when the majority of the people moved in. I
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can't tell you any more than I have already told you.

| Q. Prior to 1960 do you
know if people started to move into the éommunity
for any other reason, since the school had not
opened at that time?

A. Nineteen sixty. I can't

recall any number of people moving into the community
prior to 1960. If there were .people that were moving|
into the community, they were either moving to the
community because they were offered employment of

some sort or otherwise, but I can't recall any people
moving into the community if they were not offered
employment of some sort.

Again, as I said, I can't
recall people moving into the community prior to
1960 unless, of course, these people were people who
were offered employment in the community.

Q. Before people started to |
move into the community, was Baker Lake very similar
to the place as you described it in 19377

A. Again, as I mentioned
previously, people had a custom where these animals
were allowed to travel in the same areas they had
travelled before. Again, this also includes the
community of Baker Lake. Even during those years,
before people started moving into the community,
there were a number of caribou coming in close to
the community which indicates the fact that the
community, during that time, was pretty much

similar to what I described it during the 1930's.
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Q. I am going to ask you
about certain aspects of the community tqday and ask
you if they are similar to what the community was
like in the year 1960. Today there are a larger
number of permanent wooden homes, are there not? Is
that right?

A. Yes, that is correct.
There are more houses now. One thing you must
remember is that a lot of these houses-- they only
look like houses. 1If you were living in some of these
houses you find yourself-- they only look like a
house from a distance. They are no good during the
winter. They are very cold.

Q. The point I am making is
I am asking you are there today a large number of
permanent houses as compared to 196072

A. Yes, there are more
houses now than there were in 1960. That is correct.

Q. And there are very few
people living on the land today, is that correct?

A. That is correct. There
are now less people living out on the land than did
during the 1960's. However, I think now we are
getting to the point where more people are going to
be wanting to move back out to the land. TIf one
family or two families would move back out to the
land, I feel there is going to be a greater number of
people moving back out.

Q. Do you know anybody in

the Baker Lake area other than Mr. Avaala and
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Mr. Martee and their families living on the land
today?

A. I do not know of any
other families that are now living out on the land,

but I know of a family who had been preparing to

move back out onto the land but it takes so much work.

When a family now wants to move back out onto the

i
i

land it requires the okay of certain groups of people--

certain community and certain government departments
that it just does not come as fast as people would
like it to come.

Q. And today is there an

air strip in Baker Lake that offers regular-- some-
times regular-- passenger service to Churchill?
A. Yes, there is now a

landing strip that is large enough to accommodate
regular aircraft coming into the community. Perhaps
to a lot of people that may look as though it is a
great improvement to the community. Unfortunately,
during the time the landing strip was built it is
also a part of all the disturbance that I mentioned
to you earlier. I can recall in 1945 when there was
no air strip in the community of Baker Lake that one
was able to get out and see caribou just across the
-lake here where the adir strip is now.

Again, even though there
may be a large air strip, you see, there is no
caribou now that you see.

Q. There is a large,.

modern school in Baker Lake now, is that correct?
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A. Yes, there is a school
now—-- a large school in Baker Lake. Again, that
changed the life of the people in the community.

Q. And there is a volunteer
fire department which has a tracked water pumper, is
that correct?

A. Those such as the fire
department or firefighting equipment now exist because
of the case of danger of fire. Because of the case of
fire in the community we do now have this firefighting
equipment.

Q. Do you know how many
families live in Baker Lake today?

A. I would not know the
number of families that are now living in the
community., That is the job of people who work in the
offices and keep track of the number of people in
the community. It is not mine.

Q. Are there a large
number of skidoos and snowmobiles in the community
today?

A. Yes, there are a large
number of skidoos now in the community. Again that
only creates a problem whereas before all this
‘happened we people were out hunting and you didn't

worry about them. Now when people go hunting with

skidoos, you wonder and worry about these people being

away from the community. Again that only creates a
problem.

MR. COSMAN: I am aware that
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Mr. Peryouar does not like all the changes that have
taken place, but I would like him to answer the
guestion ‘and if he has a comment to make and his
Counsel wishes to ask him further guestions, he is
entitled to answer those guestions.

MR. GOLDEN: Well--

THE COURT: It has been a
long day, Mr. Cosman, but I do not think we can demand
that type of precision in the circumstances as they
exist. He obviously does not.approve of many of these
changes. |

BY MR. COSMAN:

Q. Is there a modern nursing

station offering health care service today in Baker

Lake?
A. Yes, that 1s correct.
Q. And is there a library
today-- a small library operating in Baker Lake?

A. When it comes to the
point of libraries, I have no knowledce of that sort
of thing whatsoever, so it 1s useless asking me that
guestion.

Q. Since 1975 have supplies
been coming to Baker Lake from Churchill bv barges
across the lake?

A. I am not clear whether
that was the specific year when these barges were
coming in. I am not certain which year they started
arriving in the community. They may be earlier.

These years may be not farther away than the other
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years I was talking about but I am not sure whether
those Qere the specific years when these certain things
happened..

Q. You are aware that the
community is supplied by barges that come in across
Baker Lake, is that right?

A. Yes, I am aware of these
barges coming into the community bringing supplies but,
unfortunately, what supplies they bring in is not my
concern. It certainly does not supply me greatly with
my supplies so, therefore, I am not in a position to
keep a watch on the kind of supplies they bring in.
But, at the same time, I am aware of the fact that
the community is growing and these supplies are coming
in.

Like I said, what type of
supplies, what sort of supplies they bring in, does
not concern me.

Q. And are you aware that
the Hamlet Council has trucks and loaders and tracked
vehicles that serve the communityé

A. Again in regards to all

this, the things such as the eguipment that are used

for different types of jobs-- heavy equipment in that
nature-- I am not in a position to-- I am aware of
all these things coming in. I can tell they are here.

Again, I am not in a position to say what type of
equipment are going to be needed for any part of the
year. I am not in a position to tell you or tell

anyone how much equipment is going to be needed. At
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the same time, I am aware of all this happening.

Q. And do you know that the
Inuit people in Baker Lake have three-wheeled Hondas
which operate on the tundra?

A. Naturally I know people
are using three-wheeled Hondas. But, again, you know,
I don't drive a three-wheeled Honda, so that doesn't
interest me. But certainly I know people are driving
three-wheeled Hondas in the community.

Q. All right. That is all
I want to hear. Now, Mr. Peryouar, you mentioned a
helicopter incident in which you indicated that a
helicopter, in your opinion, had frightened a caribou.
Did you personally see any other incidents other than
the one you mentioned involving an aircraft
frightening a caribou? I want to have your personal
experience.

A. I can tell you other than
that experience that I mentioned-- before that there
are other instances when it involved the sound of a
helicopter. I don't have to personally experience a
great number of these noises to know they disturb the
caribou.

I'll tell you why. When T
was a child growing up, my father used to tell me it
wasn't right for me to laugh out loud because it would
disturb the caribou. Imagine how much louder a
helicopter is than a child laughing. There is a great
distance there. I can assure you that any sound of

an aircraft is certainly much louder than a child
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playing and laughing outside.

Yes, certainly there are a
number of disturbances that are done by the noise of
these aircraft.

Q. What I would like to have
you tell the Court is whether you know or whether you
have seen, yourself, personally, any other incident
than the one that you have described.

A. Again, as I have stated

before, none from that particular experience, instance,

that has happened.

As I have stated before, it
is very simple to tell that a sound-- again I don't
have to tell you from personal experience that these
sounds are very disturbing to these caribou. Even if
they are not going to chase the caribou, a sound of
that nature disturbs these animals whether they may
be passing by or going in any direction. I know for
sure that the sound of these aircraft does disturb
the caribou.

THE COURT: Mr. Cosman, ve
have arrived at nine o'clock. Unless you are within
a moment or two of finishing, I think we should
recess.

MR. COSMAN: Very good, my
Lord.

—==-= COURT ADJOURNED TG MAY 18, 1979.
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